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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after

due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there

will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever anising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”). The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all matenal respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board") of Jia Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$230.3 million or 2.6% less than last year (2017: HK$236.4 million). Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$15.4 million (2017: loss of HK$4.6
million). The significant increase in loss was mainly attributable to the non-recurring listing
expenses, impairment loss of property, plant and equipment, declining revenue from
European restaurants and start-up operating costs for new restaurant opened during the

year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group operated |0 full service restaurants
and a bar in Hong Kong. We believe our multi-brand strategy enables us to maintain our
focus to our customers with varying tastes and preferences, allowing the Group to benefit

from the diversification of our customer bases.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has closed down a restaurant
under the name of RHODA and has also opened a bar and a restaurant at the revitalised
Central Police Station Compound. The Group foresees the challenges to its business going
forward and will maintain its prudent management approach to embrace these challenges
with an efficient operational discipline to enhance our cost structure and increase our

revenue.

Apart from operating our own restaurants, we also provide restaurant management and
consultancy services in Taiwan, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and the United
Kingdom (“UK™).
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
IRBEE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude to our shareholders,
business partners, and to our valued customers for their continuous support, while also
expressing my appreciation to the management team and staff for their hard work and

contributions to the development of the Group.

WONG Pui Yain
Chairperson
Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBREE
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS RERE
Year ended 31 December
BZ2A3IBLEE
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Revenue WA 230,256 236,371
Loss before taxation BRILRTEE (15,673) (3217)
Loss for the year FREE (16,426) (4,574)
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANAFIHA ARHFEEEE (15,435) (4,567)
Total comprehensive expense for the year attrbutable to AR BIHEE ABIEEE
owners of the Company PERX B (15,435) (4,567)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
MI12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 38,740 51,966
Current assets TEEE 56,032 33,749
Total assets BERE 94,772 85,715
Equity and liabilities Bakaf
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 7,779 15,691
Current liabilities mERE 25,861 31213
Total liabilities BELE 33,640 46,904
Total equity e 61,132 38811
Total equity and liabilities EnRkABEER 94,772 85,715
Net current assets REBEEFE 30,171 2,536
Total assets less current liabilities EERERREBAE 68911 54,502
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a well-established restaurant group in Hong Kong with award-winning
restaurants serving a variety of cuisines including Chinese, Spanish, Thai, British, Italy and

Southern Californian dishes under different brands and themes.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was principally engaged in
operating restaurants and providing membership services for the Group's restaurants in
Hong Kong. In May 2018, we opened a bar and a restaurant at the revitalised Central
Police Station Compound, known as “Tai Kwun", Old Bailey, our new restaurant, focus
on Jiangnan cuisine and Behind Bars boast a rotating calendar of initiatives that focus on

design, drink, audio and more.

The Group's restaurants served two categories of cuisines during the year ended 3|
December 2018. 208 Duecento Otto, 22 Ships, Ham & Sherry, Aberdeen Street Social,
RHODA and Commissary are classified as European restaurants. Duddell's, Chachawan,

Meen & Rice, Mak Mak, Old Bailey and Behind Bars are classified as Asian restaurants.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBEERLF

RBORE

AEERBE-RANLEREE HETEE
BREE RENXREEER  BREITF
MR TR - T X - REX - R
B3 - BTSN R 3 -

BZE0I8F2A3IBILFE - REEFEH
EREBREEBRARMONEBRMEHE
MR# o R2018F5 A - HRMAELELHHE
TERER (NA[RE])RAZ—MEER—
FZE - HMHFTEEOId BaileyH ) F I
3+ Behind BarsBIE T8 BB BR - R
B BREREMES

BE018F12A3IBLEE  FAEENE
ERHEMEFEA ¢ 208 Duecento Otto * 22
Ships * Ham & Sherry * Aberdeen Street Social
RHODA K& Commissary 7 ¥ BBUM B EE - #Z
FI€ R + Chachawan * 3 HLER « Mak Mak *
Old Bailey %2 Behind Bars 7> $E /A 35 M E B8



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue by type of cuisines for

the year ended 3| December 2018 with the comparative figures for the corresponding

BEEENWmED M

g da):

WA

TRENAEB DB REZ2018F 12 A3
BItFERIEXEL D EORARNBRER

period in 2017: 017 RSN RS T -
For the year ended 3| December
BENA3IBLEE
2018 2017
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
P eE THET TET
Catering services ZERRTE
— European restaurants -BNEEE | &3 101,030 121785
— Asian restaurants ~NEEE 28&4 127,984 113,271
229,014 235,056
Sponsorship income BB 800 887
Membership fee income E-CON 442 428
230,256 236,371
Note |1 208 Duecento Otto, 22 Ships, Ham & Sherry, Aberdeen Street Social, RHODA and FizE1: 208 Duecento Otto * 22 Ships * Ham &
Commissary are classified as European restaurants. Sherry » Aberdeen Street Social * RHODA &
Commissary 5 $8 AEUMEEE o
Note 2: Duddell's, Chachawan, Meen & Rice, Mak Mak, Old Bailey and Behind Bars are classified as fsE2: EEFIEEE - Chachawan * SRIHFEER - Mak
Asian restaurants, Mak * Old Bailey 5 Behind Bars % $8 AT &
B8 o
Note 3: RHODA ceased operation of in October 2018, Fi3E3: RHODAM20I8F 10 A{FLEATE «
Note 4: Old Bailey and Behind Bars commenced operations in May 2018, Fi3E4: Old Bailey zBehind BarsiA 201845 A A4S

)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DM

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's total revenue amounted to
approximately HK$230.3 million (2017: approximately HK$236.4 million). The Group
recognised a decrease of total revenue by approximately HK$6.1 million or approximately
2.6% from 2017 to 2018, which was mainly due to (i) a drop of revenue from 22 Ships
and Ham & Sherry as a result of construction road work on Ship street; (i) the loss of
revenue from cease of business of RHODA in October 2018; and (iii) the loss of revenue
from 208 Duecento Otto as the restaurant was closed for business for 45 days following
a fire incident in August 2018, offset in part by the revenue generated from the new

restaurant (Old Bailey).

Income tax expense

The Group is subject to income tax on an enterprise basis on profits arising in or derived
from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled and operate. The
Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Company was subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, respectively.

The effective income tax rate of the Group was approximately 7.1% and 20.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, respectively, if the effect of the one-off Listing

expenses was excluded.
Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's loss was approximately HK$16.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of approximately HK$1 1.8
million as compared with a loss of approximately HK$4.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The loss-making for the year ended 31 December 2018 was mainly
attributable to (i) the decrease in revenue mainly from our European restaurants; (ii)
the increase in staff costs to support the Group's business expansion; (iii) the increase
in promotional effort through cooperation with an online delivery platform due to the
increasing popularity of e-commerce; (iv) the increase in monthly rental of the Group's
leased properties upon renewal of the relevant leases; and (v) the impairment loss of

property, plant and equipment.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBEERLF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its operations primarily through cash generated from operating

activities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The Group recorded net current assets of approximately HK$30.2 million as at 31
December 2018 (2017: net current assets HK$2.5 million). Upon the completion of the
Share Offer (as defined below), the Group had raised net proceeds of HK$ | 1.7 million.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's current ratio was approximately 2.2 (2017: 1.1)
and the Group's gearing ratio calculated based on the total debt (excluding trade nature
balances, tax balances and provision) at the end of the year divided by total equity at the
end of the year was approximately 26.9% (2017: 83.2%). The Group's financial position
has been enhanced by the proceeds from the Share Offer (as defined below) in February

2018 and the payback of bank borrowings of approximately HK$9.2 million.

As at 31 December 2018, the maximum limit of the banking facilities available to the
Group was amounted to HK$23.0 million. The bank borrowings were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, repayable by instalments and interest-bearing at floating rates. The

weighted average interest rate is 3.52% per annum as at 31 December 2018.

As at 3| December 2018, the capital structure of the Group consisted of equity
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$61.1 million, comprising of

issued share capital and reserves.

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 8 February 2018 (the “Listing Date") by way of share offer (the “Share Offer”). There

has been no change in the capital structure of the Group since the Listing Date.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISKS
The Group operated mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group's transactions settled
in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Group did not have significant exposure to foreign

exchange risk during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DM

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-rate
bank borrowing, and fair value interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
non-interest bearing amounts due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due from an associate.
The Company is mainly exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to non-interest

bearing amounts due to subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group closely monitors its exposure to future cash flow risk as a
result of change on market interest rate and will consider hedging on changes in market

interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of

HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2018, the maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Board considers

the credit risk of the Company is immaterial.

The Group trades with a large number of individual customers and trading terms are
predominately on cash and credit card settlement. In view of the Group's operations, the

Group does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single individual customer.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
companies, a controlling shareholder, non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an
associate. The Board considers the counterparty with good credit worthiness based on its

past repayment history.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposits of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed banks. The Group
has concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and bank balances

are placed with three banks in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalent deem adequate by management to finance the Group's operations

and mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 October 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire the remaining
25% issued share capital of three subsidiaries from Mr. Jason Atherton, namely, Ideal Profit

Corporation Limited, Gain Long Corporation Limited and Profit Holder Limited.

Save and except for the acquisition of the remaining 25% issued share capital of Ideal
Profit Corporation Limited, Gain Long Corporation Limited and Profit Holder Limited,
the Group did not have any material acquisition nor disposal of subsidiaries or affiliated

companies during the year ended 3| December 2018.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 3| December 2018, the Group did not have any material capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 3| December 2018, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's pledged bank deposits in the amount of HK$4.5

million was pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWR DM

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

As the actual amount of the listing expenses is higher than the estimated amount of the
listing expenses set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 January 2018 (the
“Prospectus”), the actual net proceeds from the Share Offer of approximately HK$11.7
million (after deduction of the underwriting commission and listing related expenses), was
less than the estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$13.6 million as set out in the

Prospectus and the allotment results announcement dated 7 February 2018.

FERERZREKEEHERERKE
bt d
HRETRAYXEReEARARARESA
2018F | A29 AR BRELE ([BRER |) Al
FTRIMEFEE RO BEEMEHRIEA
ERFEGIGREHEAe R EmEERASZ®E)
WRINTESAT  PREBREERAEA
2018F2 A7 B ER A EREMETATE
FIBFEM36EBETT

Approximate

Actual use of
Net Proceeds

Unused total
Net Proceeds

Planned use percentage up to up to
of total of total 31 December 31 December
Use of Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Net Proceeds 2018 2018
EZ2018F
EZ20I8F 12831 B#
B FTSROR 12A31 B# HAREA
BITERIAFE FEEN  FERERE BTG
RERRREARE HERR BOl BERAR AR
(HK$ million) % (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BBET) (BBET) (BEET)
To develop new dining concepts and T &I 2T B
restaurants Mo ) RERE =) 7.7 65.8% 53 24
To carry out maintenance to the RASERBER
Group's existing restaurants o€ EITIRE W) 2.6 22.2% 08 1.8
To repay term loan (e (Ve -C 1.0 8.6% 1.0 -
General working capitals —REEER 04 3.4% - 04
Total @5t 1.7 100% 7.] 46
Notes: BisE

I The Group utilised the net proceeds to finance the establishment of a new restaurant and
bar at the end of second quarter of 2018.

2. The Group started the renovation and maintenance work of existing restaurants in the third
quarter of 2018.

3. The repayment of term loans has been executed according to the maturity dates as set in
the loan agreements with banks.

The unutilised net proceeds of approximately HK$4.6 million are deposited in licensed
banks in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. WONG Pui Yain, aged 40, is the founder and a Controlling Shareholder. She is the

Group's chairperson, chief executive officer, executive Director, the chairperson of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the legal
compliance committee. She is currently responsible for overall strategic planning and
management of the Group's business development and operations and is also a director

of each of the members of the Group.

She is experienced in hotel management and has been engaged in the hospitality industry
since 2000. She is one of the founders of Irving Management Limited (now known as JIA
Hong Kong Operations Limited) which operates the JIA Boutique Hotels in Hong Kong
since 2004 and in Shanghai, the PRC since 2007. She also founded a garden restaurant in
a black and white colonial-style house named Graze and an indoor-outdoor restaurant
named Kha, both in Singapore, in 2006 and 2008, respectively. Ms. WONG Pui Yain
was awarded “Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2006" by Hong Kong's City Junior
Chamber in 2006. She was also named on the list of “Asia’s Best Young Entrepreneurs
2008" by Businessweek in 2008, the “Women of Our Time" by South China Morning
Post in 2013, the “Restaurateur of the Year" by WOM guide in 2014 and by Hong Kong
Tatler in 2016. She was appointed as a non-executive director of Gameone Holdings
Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8282) on 30 September 2015.

Ms. Wong graduated from University of Western Australia in March 2000 with a

bachelor's degree in economics.

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry, aged 45, is the Group's executive Director, senior
operations director and chairperson of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible
for formulation of corporate development strategies, execution of daily management and

administration of business and operations, and regulatory compliance.
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RIEFMMEN —EERBEARNEARCEE
NEIP —FEEE R (BB{EGraze) AR —R=
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25 E R HRIE T (Women of Our Time)
WH2014% ) 20165 73 BIE(WOM Guide)
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEREE

She obtained a higher diploma in hotel and catering management from the Hong Kong
Technical College in July 1996. She has approximately |8 years of experience in the food
and beverage industry. From November 1996 to April 2011, she worked at Gaia Group.
She served Va Bene Ristorante for the periods of November 1996 to February 200
respectively. She worked as an assistant manager of Gaia Ristorante for the period of
March 2001 to March 2008. Her last position was operations manager of Gaia Group.
During her office in Gaia Group, she was primarily responsible for purchasing, staff hiring,
manager and staff training, menu planning and daily operation of eight restaurants in Hong
Kong and two restaurants in Shanghai, the PRC. She was also awarded “Most Influential

Woman in Hospitality 2018 — Hong Kong” by APAC Insider in 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM, aged 42, is the Group's independent non-

executive Director, chairperson of the remuneration committee and a member of the
audit committee and the nomination committee. He is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the remuneration

committee and the nomination committee.

Mr. Chanmugam joined Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong in July 2000 and worked for
Deutsche Bank AG in Singapore as vice president from May 2002 to September 2005. Mr.
Chanmugam served as a vice president (fixed income, currency & commodities division)
based in Tokyo in Goldman Sachs (Asia) LL.C. from October 2005 to September 2007.
From October 2007 to May 2013, he was relocated to Hong Kong and his last position
was managing director (fixed income, currency & commodities division). In August 2014,
Mr. Chanmugam established Elezeno Capital Limited and acted as its director. In July 2000,
Mr. Chanmugam obtained his bachelor's degree in mathematics and economics from the
London School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom. He has been
licensed to engage in type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO since

March 2015.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric, aged 55, is the Group's independent non-executive Director,
chairperson of the audit committee and a member of the nomination committee and the
legal compliance committee. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the legal compliance committee and the

nomination committee.

He has more than 20 years of senior management experience in the financial markets. He
is the vice-chairman of Venture Smart Asia Limited. He had been the managing director
of Crosby Securities Limited, the chief financial officer of Shikumen Capital Management
(HK) Limited and SAIL Advisors Limited respectively, a director of Deutsche Bank, the
head of finance of NatWest Securities Asia Limited and the regional financial controller of
Lehman Brothers Asia Holdings Limited. From October 2010 to September 2013, he was
an executive director of Crosby Capital Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8088, now
known as AID Partners Capital Holdings Limited).

He graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with a first class honors
bachelor degree in business administration. He has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since October 1989 and a CFA charterholder
since November 2008.

Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony, aged 48, is the Group's independent non-executive Director
and a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee. He is responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee

and the remuneration committee.

He has more than |0 years of experience in the finance industry. He has been with
UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited since December 2003 and is currently an associate
director of UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited. He has been licensed to engage in type |
(dealing in securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571) (the "SFO") since December 2003. He was awarded a bachelor of arts degree in
economics from Pepperdine University in the United States in April 1995.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. CHOO Tze Huei, aged 39, is the Group's operations director. He is responsible

for formulation of corporate development strategies, execution of management and

administration of business and operations and regulatory compliance.

Mr. Choo has over |5 years experience in banqueting and the food & beverage industry.
Prior to joining the Group, he had worked in Sheraton Brisbane Hotel in Australia since
1998 before he was recruited by The Park Lane Hotel (now known as Sheraton Grand
London Park Lane Hotel) in London, the UK from August 2004 to December 2010
as a food and beverage outlets manager. He joined Renaissance Harbour View Hotel
Hong Kong in Hong Kong and served as an assistant director of beverage and food from
February 2011 to May 2012. From May 2012 to January 2015 he served as the director
of food and beverage for Hong Kong SkyCity Marriott Hotel in Hong Kong. From January
2016 to February 2018, he served as a general manager of Duddell's.

Mr. Choo obtained a bachelor's degree in business (hospitality management) from The

University of Queensland in December 1999.

Ms. TSANG Yin Mei, aged 57, is the Group's administrative manager and member
of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible for the office management and
administration of the Group. She has over 30 years of experience in secretarial work,
including secretarial support in trade/logistics firms. She had worked for Citizen Watches
(HK) Ltd., Update Electronics, Reliance Agency Ltd., Capital Asia Trading Co Ltd and
Orbotech Pacific Ltd. as a clerk, secretary and executive assistant, respectively, between
June 1982 and September 2001. Further, she had also worked for PC Asia Limited as an

administrative manager.

She obtained a diploma in business secretarial studies from the Hong Kong Young
Women's Christian Association Professional & Business Youth Department in May 1982,
and passed the Office Practice and Secretarial Practice courses offered by the Hong Kong
Baptist College Division of Continuing Education with distinction in April 1986 and with
credit in August 1986, respectively.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBEERLF
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TONG Chun Kit Tony, aged 47, is the Group's group accounting manager. He is

responsible for monitoring and supervising the Group's accounting department.

He has over 20 years of experience in accounting. He had worked for Riviera Gardens
Recreation Club Limited, Emporium Department Store & Supermarket (Kwai Fong) Ltd,
Poly Mark Development Ltd., Versus Limited, Success Master Limited as an accounts clerk,
senior accounts clerk, assistant accountant and assistant officer from October 1991 to
March 2006. He had also worked as an accounting officer at Regal Collections Limited
from May 2006 to November 2007 and as an accountant at Jimei Group from November
2007 to January 2010. He obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from the

University of Bolton in the UK in September 2006 through distance learning.

Mr. CHAN Ka Ching, aged 44, is the Group's senior project manager. He is responsible
for managing the Group's projects of interior design and the renovation of the Group's

restaurants.

He has over 10 years of experience in interior fitting-out works and project management.
He has worked for Hing Lee Construction Co. Ltd. and Arnlee Engineering Ltd. as
an assistant building services engineer for the period of June 1996 to April 1997 and
April 1997 to April 1998 respectively. He had also worked in Mutiara Design Limited
and JIA Boutique Hotels as a project manager from December 2001 to March 2004
and from December 2001 to April 2005 respectively. During his employment at JIA
Boutique Hotels, he handled project team management, site administration, maintenance
management, interior fitting-out works and cost control. Further, he had joined AFSO as
a project manager between June 2005 to October 2008. He graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor's degree of engineering in building services
management in November 2003 and a master’s degree of science in project management
in December 2006.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEREE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, aged 54, was appointed as the Group's company secretary on
I ' May 2018. Ms Leung is a director of K E Corporate Services Limited (a company
secretarial services provider), a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a fellow member of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Leung obtained a master's degree in commerce from

the University of New South Wales, Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board is committed to establish and ensure high standards of corporate governance
and adopt sound corporate governance practices. The Company's corporate governance
practices are based on the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix |5 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors strongly believe that reasonable and sound corporate governance practices are
essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and enhancing shareholders'

interests.

As the Shares were listed on 8 February 2018, the Directors consider that since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this report, except for the deviation from code provision
A2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions
set out in the CG Code. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairperson and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Ms. Wong Pui Yain is the chairperson and the chief executive officer
of the Company. As Ms. Wong Pui Yain manages the Group's business development
and operations on a day-to-day basis and the Group's business is rapidly expanding, the
Board believes that with Ms. Wong Pui Yain's extensive experience and knowledge in the
business of the Group, vesting the roles of both chairperson and chief executive officer in
Ms. Wong Pui Yain is beneficial to the business prospects, management and operations of
the Group as it will (i) strengthen her leadership in the Group, and (i) allow for efficient
and effective planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. Therefore,
the Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.| of the CG Code is

appropriate in such circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LRERBE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the Group's overall strategies,
the setting of management targets and supervision of management performance. The
management is delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
management and administration of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees of the Company. Further details of the

Board committees are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by the direction and supervision of the Company's business and affairs and the
ultimate responsibility for day to day management of the Company which is delegated
to the management. To this end, periodic financial and operational information are
provided to the Board for assessing the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries.
For significant matters that are specifically delegated by the Board, the management
must report back to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group and to provide
the Board with updates in a timely manner, giving an assessment of the Company's

performance and position to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The Board is responsible for, among others, performing the corporate governance duties

as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include:

(@)  to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance

and make recommendations;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the

Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal

and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to the Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Group's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

Up to the date of this report, the Board comprises of five Directors, two of whom are
executive Directors and the other three are independent non-executive Directors. Details

of their composition by category are as follows:
Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (appointed as director on 21 August 2015 and re-designated as
executive Director and appointed as chairperson of the Board and chief executive officer

on 23 January 2018)

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (appointed as director on 21 August 2015 and re-designated

as executive Director on 23 January 2018)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (appointed on 23 January 2018)

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (appointed on 23 January 2018)
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony (appointed on 23 January 2018)

All Directors have appropriate professional qualification or substantive experience and
industry knowledge. The Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of
skills and experience. The composition of the Board satisfies the requirements of Rules
5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three independent non-executive
Directors and at least one of them has accounting professional qualification. With more
than one-third of the members of the Board are independent non-executive Directors,

the Board has a strong independence element in terms of its composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings a diverse
range of expertise, skills and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's
strategies, performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the

interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Board of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 20 of this report. There are no family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.
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CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain was appointed as a Director on 21 August 2015 and was re-
designated as an executive Director, chief executive officer and the chairperson of the
Board on 23 January 2018. Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry was appointed as a Director on 21

August 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 23 January 2018.

The chairperson of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is also responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice and is responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The executive Directors are responsible for the
implementation of the business strategies, policies and objectives set out by the Board and
is accountable to the Board for the overall operations of the Group. These functions and

responsibilities are currently being shared by the management team.

According to paragraph A.2.I of the Code, the roles of the chairperson and the chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
During the year, Ms. WONG Pui Yain, the chairperson of the Company, is responsible for
overseeing the overall financial matters of the Group. The day-to-day operations of the
Group are delegated to another executive Director and the Management responsible for

different aspects of the business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong

Tony were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors on 23 January 2018.

With their professional knowledge and experience, the independent non-executive
Directors serve an important function of advising the Management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards in financial and other
mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole and will participate in the
Company's various committees including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the legal compliance committee (the

“Legal Compliance Committee").
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The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors the
written confirmation of his independence in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing

Rules, and therefore, considers each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The articles of association (the “Articles”) provide that at each annual general meeting
("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual

general meeting at least once every three years.

All of the Directors including both the executive Directors and the INEDs are appointed
for a specific term. Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a period of three years subject to the rotation requirement and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by either party giving at least one month'’s notice
in writing. In accordance with the Company's articles of association and, at each AGM of
the Company, the Directors will retire from office by rotation but will be eligible for re-

election.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of directors’ responsibilities

and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Directors are also
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The company secretary of the Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of

good corporate governance practices.

AN A fs S
TRERRE

ARRERESBIUIFMTEERECGEM L
MARRIFES OF B B H R L - &
RmRRESEABIAL -

ZEREEES
AEERAR((HADRE  EBEEERE
FRE((RRBEFARE)) L BERAEEN=

NZ—EZ(BEABLIF=Q)NRBE - AR
BHBEAPR=D 2 —WAB) K@ ERE -
EBREFARIE-FRBRREFA gL
R

BRATESRBUFATESEANEE
EXONBERRERE - BRBUIFNT
EECEARAFUAB=FNEREE
RETHERERTELRATER  RIEE
—HNEERAZ DRI —EAELBAR
IF e BREARARMABERAR - REARF]
BEBRRBEFASL EZSHERIHES
RERBEEL -

EERERSRERERE

EHNEAETRE N EZFRE BRI TN
FEMD S 2E - AERESHARAE
BREEESHER  WRHRHGMLET
RARBAZEEER TEEZBERE

EXRERBEREEHMETEREERIEUR
EBRE  UEBRTHRSEZBE - ARAMN
BEEEF2EREEELRUERIENA
MBRILEE - ARAHRAIMETHNEE
EEMGEM LR R EMEREEREN
BHER  UBEREAMRREABREHR T
TEEREROEH

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F1k

25



26

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LRERBE

According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary of training received

by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

RIEERRENER  ESEREZE20I8F12
A3 BIEFEREAEIIMENT

Continuous
professional

development

Name of Directors programmes
EBE BEERRRIHY
Executive Directors

BITES

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (Chairperson) Yes
BALL () B
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry Yes
BEFELL A
Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM Yes
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAMSE 4 B
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric Yes
REBRE B
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony Yes
WEE Keng Hiong Tony 7t 4 )

The nature of continuous professional development programmes are attending training
courses or reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest development of

the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETINGS

Schedules and draft agenda of each Board meeting are normally made available to
Directors in advance. At least 14 days’ notice should be given for a regular Board meeting.

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notices are generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached are duly kept by the company secretary at the meetings and open for

inspection by the Directors.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBEERLF

FEEXERFINMEERZ NEIIRES
BIEAMGEM LR M EMEREERK
W @B R RS ER -

EXggRnNERRER
BREFELRANBHRRZARE
ARETEE -THEZS SRR
[4RB LB - REMEESRZESSR
ME  —MGBEHSIZEA -

—#2

ﬂ HN %f)‘ﬂ

MEEE SR CRCRMERTRANRTE
BORROADFHIE - HARANEESE
REFBEYRMAHRESZER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREAHE

The Articles contain provision requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be BAUHEEREENEEBESHEME

counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or HEANBEEARGNR SR LERRE
any of their associates have a material interest. B NEEABBRX
Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to EFeNHERAMBES  TEMAZEH
all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to BREREECCRUELLZELCEAE
keep the Directors apprised of the latest development and the financial position of the IRFETFEBESUFESNERRFL
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. BT HE R I B TS A 00 N 50 15 482 S R I 1B
R o
ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS ERHFETE
Details of Directors’ attendance at the AGM, Board and Board Committee meetings in TREHNESH20I8FHEFEREBFRE
the year 2018 are set out in the following table: EEehEEREeRHNEE
Number of meetings attended/held
HE/BITEERE
Legal
General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance
Meetings Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee
ERER

BRAE Exg BHRZEET FHZEEE REESE Z£88

Executive Directors

BITES

Ms. WONG Pui Yain [/1 8/8 - 212 11 11
afEZtL

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry [/1 8/8 - - - [/1
BEEZL

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 11 8/8 4/4 2/2 11 -
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM % 4

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric 11 8/8 4/4 - 11 /1
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony /1 8/8 4/4 212 - -
WEE Keng Hiong Tony 4t 4
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INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

Where there are matters involving connected or continuing connected transactions, so far
as required under the GEM Listing Rules, an Independent Board Committee, comprising

wholly the INEDs, will be established.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee with delegated powers for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affair. Each of the committees of the Company has been established with written terms of

reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, meetings shall be held not
less than four times a year and the external auditor may request a meeting if they consider

that one is necessary.

The audit committee of the Company consists of three independent non-executive
Directors: Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng
Hiong Tony and is chaired by Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop
and review the policies of the Group and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditor's remuneration, the
independence of the auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT"), and recommended
the Board to re-appoint DTT as the Company's auditor for the year ending 31 December
2019, which is subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
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The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which opined that applicable accounting standards and

requirements have been complied with and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the
Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The remuneration committee of the Company consists of one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors: Ms. WONG Pui Yain, Mr. Devin Nijanthan
Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony and is chaired by Mr. Devin Nijanthan

Chanmugam.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but without limitation):
(a) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy and structure for
the remuneration of all the Directors and senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (c) reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (d) considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder of the

Company on 23 January 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme").

The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by reference to
the benchmarking of the market. The Company also considers individual Director's
competence, duties, responsibilities, performance and the results of the Group in

determining the exact level of remuneration for each Director.
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Senior Management’s remuneration

Senior Management's remuneration payment of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2018 falls within the following bands:

HE0I8FNA3NBILEE  AEEBSRE
EENFMSMEUATREA :

HK$ Number of individuals
BT AH
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 3

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set

out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and senior management was
based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market conditions. Any
discretionary bonus and other merit payments are linked to the performance of the

Group and the individual performance of the Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with paragraph A5.1 of the CG Code. The terms of reference setting out the Nomination
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, meeting shall be held
at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The nomination committee of the Company consists of one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors Ms. WONG Pui Yain, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and is chaired by Ms. WONG Pui Yain.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is (a) to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on regular basis; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; (c) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to

the appointment or reappointment of Directors.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the Board diversity policy as well as discussing matters regarding the retirement

and re-election of Directors.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a legal compliance committee on 23 January 2018. The
terms of reference setting out the Legal Compliance Committee’s authority, duties and

responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance Committee, meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, Ms. WONG
Pui Yain and Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and is chaired by Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry. Please
refer to the section headed “Business — Internal control and risk management measures — .
Establishment of the legal compliance committee” in the Prospectus for further details of

the principal responsibilities of the Legal Compliance Committee.

The primary function of the Legal Compliance Committee is for the purpose of assisting in
overseeing compliance with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and

the adequacy and effectiveness of regulatory compliance procedures and system.

The Legal Compliance Committee has reviewed and is satisfied with the compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the adequacy and

effectiveness of regulatory compliance procedures and system.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the audited consolidated financial

statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring that the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for each financial year are prepared to
provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs, the financial results and cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
and the applicable accounting standards. In preparing the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 3| December 2018, the Board has adopted appropriate
and consistent accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and
estimates. The Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which
reflect with reasonable accuracy the state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and
equity movement of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and

applicable accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability

to continue as a going concem.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The
statement of auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated

financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's auditor, are set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report with full text included in pages on 64 to on 71 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration for the audit and non-audit

services provided by the Company's auditor to the Group was as follows:

AN A fs S
TRERRE

REET <

REZE2018FE 12831 BILEE - AAREE
EhmAEEIRHE MIERT RSB £ m
—|T:

Type of services Amount
R 5 ]
HK$'000

TAET

Annual audit service for the year ended 31 December 2018 EZ2018F 12 A31 HIEFERFER RS 1,250
Non-audit services JEZEE AR () 475
Total st 1725

Note: Non-audit services include reporting accountants services for the year ended 31 December

2018 relating to the listing and tax compliance services.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company's policies, practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management, the Company's

policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc..

The Directors review the Group's corporate governance policies and compliance with the
CG Code each financial year and comply with the “Comply or Explain” principle in the

corporate governance report which is or will be included in the reports of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with the requirement as

set out in the CG Code, which is summarised as below:

The Board diversity policy of the Company specifies that in designing the composition
the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board members' appointment will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture, ethnicity

and educational background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The Company discloses the composition of the Board in the corporate governance
report every year and the Nomination Committee oversees the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be

required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all of the Directors complied with such required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions from the date of Listing and up

to the date of this report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
and in particular, through AGMs or other general meetings to communicate with the

Shareholders and encourage their participation.

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for separate issues proposed
at the general meetings. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each

Shareholders’ meeting.
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The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication

policy and to update investors on relevant information on the Group's business in a timely

manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

(@)

Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018, there has been
no significant change in the constitutional documents of the Company. The Articles

are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company's AGM will be held on 6 June 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(@

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company. Shareholders also have the right to propose a person for election as
a Director, the procedures are available on the websites of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.
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(b)  Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the extent such
information is publicly available to the company secretary who is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board's purview to the
executive Directors of the Company, communications relating to matters within
a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the chairperson of the appropriate
committee, and communication relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, enquiries and consumer complaints, to the appropriate management of
the Company, in writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.
()  Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to the operations
and management of the Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings.
The proposals shall be sent to the company secretary by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary
general meeting by following the procedures set out in “Convening an

extraordinary general meeting” above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key to enhancing
investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and investment public. The Company updates its
shareholders on its latest business developments and financial performance through
its annual, interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.jiagroup.co) has provided an effective communication platform to the public and

the shareholders.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, the company secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the
advice and services of the company secretary to ensure that the Board procedures and
all applicable laws are followed. Moreover, the company secretary is responsible for

facilitating communications among Directors as well as with management.

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms Leung Yin Fai, as its company
secretary. Mr. Tong Chun Kit Tony, the accounting manager of the Group, is the primary

contact person whom Ms. Leung Yin Fai can contact.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the company secretary has undertaken more
than |5 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM

Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and intemal control systems of the Group. The Group's systems
of risk management and internal control include a defined management structure with
limits of authority, which is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for intemal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievement of the Group's objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority has been established. The division/department head of each core
operating division/department is accountable for the conduct and performance of such
division/department within the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and the

Board together, and reports directly to the Board.
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In the course of conducting the business, the Group is exposed to various types of risks.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and

compliance risks.

Risk Areas
2B SB35

Principal Risks
TERR

ERREHBIEY  AEEEGRSERR -
BZE20I18F12A3IHLEFE - ZIS‘EEE%IJ
EETIEERBSBABRER - 2ER
B MR RERER

Strategic Risks

reputation risk

BREE R

Operational Risks

2ERR SPNHETR - T6B - BAMREGETT

Financial Risks

Luprtelay

Liquidity risk; credit risk; interest rate risk; inflation risk

nBEEER  EERR  MERR - BRER

Compliance Risks

of listing rules and relevant company regulations and ordinances

TR EEREREDIMRER - LR

AR HRETENEREABNER -

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the Group and it has
delegated to executive management to carry out the risk identification and monitoring
procedures. The objectives of the risk management are to enhance the governance and
corporate management processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable

levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, amongst others, (i) an annual
risk identification and analysis exercise which involves assessment of the consequence and
likelihood of risks and the development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks;
and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk management plans and fine

tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBEERLF

HRABROSRI - (REFFRIAEP @K - TIFHFE

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers' taste; market competition risk,

o BERR

Risk related to occupation safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances related to employment; change

R R ABRE 2RI R I E 2R
EXeRRAEAKENARERE - HED

RERTHEREETR RN EER
FroBREENBRREREGRERER
BF TREASERETGEEINRRR
‘X

AEENRERERRZFS SN (AR8%E)()
FERBHMNEAN - BREFEELERRD
RR B AT BE M A R 1) E PR K AR BE L B WY L
BEFE mif%ﬁﬂAaﬁﬁ%Wﬂ
TERRGERTERTHR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the period under review, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit

Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.

Even though the Group does maintain an internal audit function, the Board has overall
responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the review of the Group's internal control systems, the Directors
were satisfied that effective internal control measures as appropriate to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were implemented properly and that no significant areas

of weaknesses were identified.

The Company has hired an internal audit manager to review the Group's system of
internal controls and risk management annually and further enhance the Group's internal

control and risk management systems as appropriate.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on a timely basis
and the Board endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the

required practices and standards including the provisions of the CG Code.
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RE - HERERRS

Jia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)

is pleased to present its environmental, social and governance report in accordance with

the environmental, social and reporting guidelines as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM

Listing Rules. The principal business of the Group is the provision of dining and event

hosting services and was prepared in accordance with the “Comply or Explain” Provisions

of the ESG Guide. The reporting period for this report is from | January 2018 to 31
December 2018 (the “Reporting Period”).

Below are the Group's commitments to each of the focus area under its corporate social

responsibility framework:

A

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Air Emissions

Oily fume containing particulate matter is emitted from the Group's kitchen
which may have negative impact on human health and create odour nuisance to
the neighbourhood. The Group is committed to reducing and better control of
such emissions through various measures such as installation of efficient filtering
equipment, regular maintenance of ventilation system, as well as selection of
restaurant locations with minimal impact to the neighbourhood as possible. As for
greenhouse gases, the most significant parts of the Group's carbon footprint are
sourced from fuel and electricity consumption in the Group's restaurants, factories
and offices. The policies on reduction of such emission are described in “Use of

Energy and Water” section below.

Water Discharge

The Group strictly follow the requirements as set out in the Water Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when the Group
discharge waste water. All of the Group's restaurants possess water pollution
control license issued by the Environmental Protection Department of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR"), and the Group have installed

sufficient equipment to ensure sewage is properly processed before discharge.
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Waste Management

The major type of waste generated from the Group's operations is food waste
from the Group's diners' leftover, which is not directly controllable by us. However,
to help reduce wastage, the Group's restaurants’ operations manuals and
training packs contain food ordering and processing guidelines which have been
communicated to the Group's employees to raise their awareness on food waste
reduction, and the Group has also established recipes and portion controls so as
to avoid excessive food being catered. Paper waste is also generated from the
Group's administrative activities in offices, which the Group s taking an active role
to control through reducing paper use by double-sided printing, reusing printed
papers, replacing paper forms with electronic ones and recycling used papers. No
hazardous wastes were generated during the Reporting Period due to the Group's

business nature.

Use of Energy and Water

The Group consumes electricity and fuel for its restaurant operations. In order
to reduce energy use, the Group adopts a holistic management approach from
selection of energy efficient hardware, designing the Group's restaurant layout and
workflow with energy-saving considerations, to encouraging the Group's staff to
adopt green working practices. The same approach applies to water, for which the
Group supports water conservation through deploying advanced technology and

changing the behaviour of the Group's employees.

Use of Packaging Materials

To better retain the quality and ensure the safety of the Group's food products,
the Group uses certain packaging materials including takeaway boxes, plastic bags
as well as various disposables in the Group's restaurant operations. The Group
understands the environmental impact of such materials therefore we have set out
guidelines for the Group's staff to minimise the usage and encourage the Group's
customers to reuse and recycle as possible. Moreover, the Group prefers those
packaging materials which are made from environmentally-friendly substances and

are recyclable.
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Environment Management and Compliance

Since all of the Group's restaurants are located at prime locations, the Group
is aware of the importance of environmental management and have developed
mechanisms on identifying, assessing and mitigating the environmental risks arising
from the Group's operations. The Group did not note any material non-compliance

with environmental laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

SOCIAL

The Group aims to ensure that the health, safety, and welfare of its employees
are well taken care of and the Group acknowledges its responsibility towards
employees who may be affected by its activities. While the Group regards legislative
compliance as a minimum, whenever possible, the Group seeks to implement

higher health and safety standards throughout the Group.

Employment

The Group offers competitive packages, as well as development opportunities
to the Group's employees in order to attract talents. The Group has established
a comprehensive human resources policy to govern the Group's recruitment
and dismissal procedures, and set the Group's working hours, rest periods and
employees’ benefits in accordance with the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the

Laws of Hong Kong).

In addition, the Group prohibits discrimination of any kind. The Group ensures
equal opportunities in all of the Group’s human resources’ practices, regardless
of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability, family status, and race. To better
recognise contribution of the Group's employees, the Group have established a fair
performance evaluation mechanism to promote and award employees on a regular

basis.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material non-

compliance with employment-related laws and regulations.
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Workplace Health and Safety

The Group seeks to create a safe working environment for the Group's employees.
The Group has established the Health and Safety at Work Policy to provide
guidelines and raise the awareness of safety in the Group's restaurants. Accidents
are reported to management and handled promptly in accordance with the
Group's standard procedures. The Group has also formed the Health and Safety
Committee to oversee the related risks and meet with the operation teams

regularly to understand their concemns on the working environment.

In order to further mitigate the health and safety risks in the Group's restaurants,
staff are required to receive trainings on health and safety topics such as first aid,

fire evacuation and other emergency procedures.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material non-

compliance with occupational safety and health-related laws and regulations.

Training and Development

To maintain a high level of service standard and to enhance the knowledge of the
Group's people, the Group provides on-the-job trainings to the Group's employees
in relation to food preparation and preservation, customer services and quality
control in different aspects of the restaurant operations. The Group ensures all of
the Group's staff could receive adequate training, at the time when they join the

Group and on a continuing basis.

Anti-Child and Forced Labour

All of the Group's restaurants and offices strictly comply with the requirements of
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which explicitly
prohibit child and forced labour. Multiple control measures have been implemented
in the recruitment process to ensure all new joiners are legitimate workers in Hong

Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified any material non-

compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and regulations.
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Procurement Management

The Group requires its suppliers to deliver services or products that meet the
Group's internal quality standards and relevant regulatory requirements in Hong
Kong. To ensure that the Group's suppliers maintain a desired level of quality, the
Group only purchases from pre-approved suppliers who has passed the Group's
initial assessment. Prior to using their food products, inspection needs to be
carried out by the Group's chefs and those do not meet the Group's standards are
returned to the supplier(s). Moreover, regular meetings and performance review of
suppliers are performed. Suppliers who failed to meet the Group's quality standard

are removed from the Group's supplier list on a timely basis.

Quality of Food, Service and Hygiene

The Group strives to consistently deliver high quality food and beverage services
and continuously enhancing the Group's customers’ dining experience through
understanding their expectation and innovation. The Group also emphasises the
use of fresh and healthy ingredients and maintain a high quality hygiene standard in
the kitchens and dining areas of the Group's restaurants. The Group implements
appropriate internal control and management systems for environmental and
food safety. Sufficient and adequate training are provided to the Group's staff to
equip them with knowledge on properly handling of food, managing restaurants’
environment as well as serving the Group's customers. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has not identified any cases of material non-compliance with

laws and regulations relating to food hygiene matters.

Advertising and Menu Setting

In accordance with the Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Group ensures the contents of the Group's advertisements and
menus truly reflect the facts and are consistent with the Group's services and
products without exaggeration. The Group has not identified any material non-
compliance with advertising and labelling-related laws and regulations during the

Reporting Period.
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Data Privacy

The Group is committed to protecting the privacy of the Group's customers,
partners and staff in the collection, processing and use of their personal data. The
Group strictly follows the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“PDPQ") and the Group has not identified any non-compliance
with the PDPO during the Reporting Period.

Anti-Corruption

The Group implements adequate internal controls in preventing and detecting

bribery, extortion and fraud.

To prevent any bribery or kickback arrangements between the Group's staff
and suppliers, the Group has implemented certain policies, such as supplier due-
diligence, segregation of duties, declaration of conflict of interest, etc, and has set
out the Group's expectations on the Group's employees' code of conduct in the
employee handbook. The Group has also invited the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (“ICAC") to deliver anti-bribery talks to the Group's staff,

thereby enhancing their awareness.

The Group has not identified any material non-compliance with anti-corruption

related laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.
Caring for the Community

The Group values its relationship with the community and participates in various
charitable events in order to support the underprivileged. The Group aims at
utilising its resources in creating a harmonious environment in the areas the Group
operate, and strengthening the Group's bonding to build the Group’s brand in the
neighbourhood.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has made donations to a non-profit making
organisation in Hong Kong to support social welfare service in the community. The
Group also encourages its employees to participate in the charitable donations
and community services. In addition, the Group maintains an open channel
of communication with its stakeholders and communities to understand their
motivations, goals and needs through continuous conversation in order to achieve

the Group's contributions in corporate social responsibility activities.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law as an

exempted company with limited liability on 21 August 2015.

The Shares have been listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange by way of the Share
Offer since 8 February 2018.

In connection with the Listing, the companies comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”). Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation,
the Company became the holding company of the other members of the Group on
23 January 2018. Further details of the Group Reorganisation are set out in the section

headed “History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” of the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the audited consolidated financial statements.
The principal activities of the Group are predominately the provision of catering and

membership services.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the

audited consolidated financial statements on page 72.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on pages |74 to 176 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Except for those included in the section headed "“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
for inclusion in the Prospectus, the Group had no definite future plans for material

investments and capital assets.
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USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Details of the use of proceeds and comparison of business objectives with actual business
progress are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on

page 14 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 14 to the audited consolidated financial

statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 22 to

the audited consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 3|

December 2018 are set out in note 24 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

pages 75 to 76 and note 32 to the audited consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$41.7 million (2017: nil).
Details of the reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 32

to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Since the Listing took place subsequent to the year ended 3| December 2018, the
Company did not redeem its listed securities, nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase, cancel or sell any of such listed securities for the year ended 3|
December 2018.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the

date of this report were as follows:
Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (appointed as director on 21 August 2015 and re-designated as an
executive Director and appointed as the chairperson of the Board and chief executive
officer on 18 May 2017)

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (appointed as director on 2| August 2015 and re-designated
an as executive Director on 18 May 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (appointed on 23 January 2018)

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (appointed on 23 January 2018)
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony (appointed on 23 January 2018)

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of
the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A

retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Director has given the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

and meet the independent guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

(@)

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date (subject to
termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service contract),
which may be terminated by not less than one month's notice served by either
party on the other. The appointments are subject to the provisions of the Articles
of Association with regard to vacation of office of Directors and removal and

retirement by rotation of Directors.
Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a period of three years commencing from the
Listing Date (subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant letter of appointment), which may be terminated by not less than one
month'’s notice served by either party on the other. The appointments are subject
to the provisions of the Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and
removal and retirement by rotation of Directors. Save for the directors’ fee, none
of the independent non-executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding their office as an independent non-executive Director

and a member of any board committees of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has entered into any service agreement with any

member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration Committee by

reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also looks into individual

Director’s competence, duties, responsibilities and performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the

Group are set out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out

on pages |5 to 20 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or an entity connected with any
of them had any material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, parent company or subsidiaries of the parent
company was a party and subsisting at any time during or at the end of the year ended 31

December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or

any of their subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2018
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company (including their
spouses or children under |8 years of age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company or any of its specified undertakings as defined in the Companies (Report of
the Board of Directors) Regulation or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not enter into or have any management
and/or administration contracts in respect of the whole or any principal business of the

Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

As disclosed in the Prospectus and as at the date of this report, Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan (the
spouse of Ms. WONG Pui Yain), and Mr. Pong Kin Yee, each had 15.25% shareholding
in Classified Group (Holdings) Limited, the holding company of a group of companies
comprising the Classified Group (Holdings) Limited, Classified Limited, The Pawn Limited,
Small Medium Large Limited and Classified Group Management Limited (formerly known
as Classified Bread and Cheese Limited) (together referred to as the “Classified Group”).
Classified Group engaged in the business of restaurant operation in Hong Kong and had
interests in | | restaurants in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan and Mr. Pong Kin Yee are

also the directors of Classified Group (Holdings) Limited.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and above, the Directors are not aware of any
business and interest of the Directors nor the controlling shareholders of the Company
nor any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interests which any such person has or may have with the Group from the Listing Date to

the date of this report.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain and Giant Mind International Limited (“Giant Mind") (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition dated 23 January 2018 (“Deed
of Non-Comepetition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and each of its subsidiaries),
pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders has, unconditionally and
irrevocably, undertaken to the Company in the Deed of Non-Competition that she/
it will not, and will procure her/its close associates (other than members of the Group)
not to, for herself/itself or jointly with or acting for any other person, firm or company as
shareholder(s), director(s), partner(s), agent(s), employee(s) or otherwise, and whether
or not for profit, remuneration or other purpose, directly or indirectly be involved or
engaged in or undertake any business (other than the business of the Group) that directly
or indirectly competes, or may compete, with the Group's business or undertaking (the
“Restricted Activity”), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that
compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders and/or her/its close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued shares of any company (whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange or other stock exchange) which is engaged in any business that is or may be in
competition with any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do not

control 10% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.
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Further, each of the Group's Controlling Shareholders has undertaken that if any new
business investment or other business opportunity relating to the Restricted Activity (the
"“Competing Business Opportunity") is identified by or made available to her/it or any
of herfits close associates, she/it shall, and shall procure that her/its close associates shall,

refer such Competing Business Opportunity to the Company on a timely basis.

For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section headed
"Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders — Non-competition undertaking and

corporate governance measures to manage conflicts of interests” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of her/its compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition from the Listing Date up to the date of this report.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and
confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied by each of the Controlling Shareholders from the Listing Date to the date of this
report.
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

a)  Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part V of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register required to be kept therein; or (iii) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by directors to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Interests in the Company
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EEpR 51/ ERtE RAZEE =2 BAL
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Interest of a controlled corporation ") 409,670,000(L) 47.64%
AR L % e
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Beneficial owner 66,816,000(L) 7.77%
RfE T BEEAA
Note fisr

\ 409,670,000 Shares are held by Giant Mind, which is solely owned by Ms.
WONG Pui Yain and 66,816,000 Shares by Ms. WONG Pui Yain in her

personal capacity.

2 The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.
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(i)  Interests in associated corporation of the Company

EEERE

(i) RER DG B

Number of
Name of associated Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity interested M2 shareholding
i/ BERER
EEpR HEEEERE 4] RAPEE =) EREDL
Ms. WONG Pui Yain Giant Mind (et D Beneficial owner 1,000(L) 100%
B Giant Mind %" ESHAA
Note BT

Giant Mind held 47.64% of issued Shares of the Company.

2 The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part V
of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register required to be kept therein; or
(iii) pursuant to Rules 546 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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b)  Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders and other persons

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2018 so far as it is known to the Directors, the following

persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or were

deemed to have interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which

were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section

336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

() Long position in the Shares

TERRRHEMALREDTRG KA
BRONEZRAR

R20I18F12A318 - FESZRM > T5I
AT GEEESA DA RETERAE)R
AR ARER XD SRR P AR IE
EH LB IED F 336 15BN AR T
AFENECMPRERIAE iR
BESFRIEERAEXVEE 2R3N
BETRBOERIXE

()  REGHIEE

Number of Approximate

Shares held/ percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested shareholding

R/ BAEES BRI

nE/ 8 51/ BEME BHEE BOL

Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan Mete ) Interest of spouse 476,486,000 55.41%
BB LMD [y e

Giant Mind Beneficial interest 409,670,000 47.64%
Giant Mind BESES

Note Bt

Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan, the spouse of Ms. WONG Pui Yain, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in these 476,486,000 Shares in which Ms. WONG

Pui Yain is interested.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the Share Option

Scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the Shareholders passed

on 23 January 2018. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the

provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Share Option Scheme became

effective on the Listing Date, and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date. No share option has been granted by the Company

since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to

Shareholders. The Board may offer to grant an option to any Qualifying Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who is an
officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Employee”); (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Secondee”);
(3) any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or
any affiliates; (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of goods
or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof (collectively the
“Eligible Person”); or (i) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible Person or his immediate
family members or any company controlled by an Eligible Person or his immediate family

members.

The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exercised. The maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issued following the

completion of the Capitalisation Issue and the Share Offer, i.e. 86,000,000 Shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to that person in any I2-month period up to the date of the latest grant

exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from
the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer
(or such period as the Board may specify in writing). The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is

the highest of:

(a)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets

on the offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five Business Days immediately preceding the offer date;

or
() the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the

Listing Date, after which no further options will be granted or offered.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year ended 31 December 2018.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
has Innovax Capital Limited (“Innovax”) to be the compliance adviser. As informed by
Innovax, neither Innovax nor any of its directors or employees or close associates had
any interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if any) or otherwise in relation to the
Company which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of
the GEM Listing Rules (except for the compliance adviser agreement dated 26 January
2018 entered into between the Company and Innovax (the “Compliance Adviser

Agreement”)) as at 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to the Compliance Adviser Agreement, Innovax has received and will receive

fees for acting as the Company's compliance adviser.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no material breach

of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant operator, the Group has a large and diverse customer base. There is no
customer significantly dominated in Group’s revenue. For the year ended 31 December
2018, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
20.2% of the Group's total purchases of raw materials and consumables consumed. During
the same year, purchases from the Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately

4.8% of the Group's total purchases of materials and consumables.

Save for the purchases from related companies as set out in note 26 to the audited
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their respective associates, or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any significant beneficial interest in the major

customers and suppliers disclosed above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group in 2018 are set out in

note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Among these related party transactions, the purchase of goods from Cigarro, the
consultancy service fee to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries (namely Mr. Jason
Atherton) and rental expenses to companies with 50% owned by Ms. Wong Pui Yain
(which relates to the lease of the office from Golders Way Company Limited which is
owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong Pui Yain and 50% by her father) have continued after the
Listing and have become continuing connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. These transactions all fall within the de minimis rule under Rule 20.74(I) of
the GEM Listing Rules and are fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review

and all disclosure requirements.
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Save as aforesaid, none of the related party transactions set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements constitute a “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules because either (i)
the transaction was an one-off transaction which took place before the Listing; or (ii) the

transaction was continuous in nature but had been discontinued before the Listing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and will review and improve the corporate governance practices

and standards constantly.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 39 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a

sufficient public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws of Caymans Islands
or the Articles which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to the existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), every
Director is entitled under the Company's Articles to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
offices or trusts, except such (if any) as he or she shall incur or sustain through their own

fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has maintained a directors and officers liability insurance during the year
ended 31 December 2018. To the extent as permitted by the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), a directors’ liability insurance is currently in place to protect the Directors against

potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 290 employees in Hong Kong (2017: 282

employees in Hong Kong). Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and in accordance with the performance, qualification(s) and experience of each individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses, based on each individual's performance, are paid to
employees as recognition and in reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits
such as medical insurance, retirement benefits and other allowances are offered to all the

Group's employees.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship with its key
stakeholders, including its employees, customers and suppliers, to meet its immediate
and long-term business goals. During the year ended 3| December 2018, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and its employees, customers and

suppliers.

The Group recognises employees as one of its valuable assets and strictly complies
with the labour laws and regulations and reviews regularly the existing staff benefits for
improvement. Apart from the reasonable remuneration packages, the Group also offers
other employee benefits, such as medical insurance. The Group provides good quality
services to its customers and keeps a database for direct communications with recurring
customers for developing a long-term trusted relationship. The Group also maintains

effective communication and develops a long-term business relationship with the suppliers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 December 2018 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position can be found in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section set out on pages 8 to 14 of this report. These discussions form part

of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report, which forms part of this report, is set

out on pages 40 to 45 of this report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The first AGM of the Company will be held on 6 June 2019, the notice of which shall be
sent to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles, the GEM Listing

Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 3 June 2019 to
Thursday, 6 June 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will

be registered.

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year have been audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offered themselves for re- appointment. A resolution will be
submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

as auditor of the Company.

There was no changes in the Company's auditor during the past three years.

By order of the Board
Jia Group Holdings Limited

Wong Pui Yain

Chairperson

21 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRASS

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BB HRRNE AR

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jia Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 72 to 173, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

TEERER

FRGEYRBRRNBILBEIRE

TEERSEHR
FEERTERRBEBSNIERAE BB
HABREGESMBRRNERERERNE
B BEEHEERERRANBBRRALAR
REETRENEER ESITHHES
BRHEFOER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEUNIEETEESSER

Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations
EXEEEELENERRBEUA

We identified revenue from catering services of the Group's restaurant

operations as a key audit matter, due to the significance of revenue
from catering services of the Group's restaurant operations to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

BER &

SERERCENERRBRAZR AT RERER
@ EREE 3
2

BRENERRBEAGSBRIAMEE

The accounting policy for revenue recognition in relation to revenue
from catering services of the Group's restaurant operations is disclosed
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. For the year ended
31 December 2018, revenue from catering services of the Group's
restaurant operations amounted to approximately HK$230,256,000
with details set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
SARBRRMNE4REAR SEEERKENERRBEA
MR ATEROEETBUR - HZ2018F 2A31 B EEE - BXHE
EREENERRBRAL R2302560008TT » FIEHNERA I
BRRHIES ©

As the vast majority of revenue from catering services was settled in
cash or by credit card, we focused on the reconciliation of daily sales
report to cash receipts and credit card settlements.
ARABLBERRBUANR ERERREE  EEZINAE
HERSTERS U RERREEOHE

Our procedures in relation to revenue from catering services of the

Group's restaurant operations included:

BEAH BEREERLENESRBKRANREFERE

®  Obtaining an understanding of the Group's revenue recognition

policy for catering services of the Group's restaurant operations;

T EEEERKENEFRBRARRER

®  Obtaining an understanding of the revenue business processes
and relevant key controls, including the key manual and
information technology controls for validity of revenue
recognition in relation to revenue from catering services of the
Group's restaurant operations with the involvement of our
internal information technology specialist;
TREAZBERENERIRER  BRENBERARRK
EXN2ETHEN BEEEZEELENERRBUAL
WARERNB RN T BATF REARHRIES

*  \Verifying the revenue from catering services of the Group's
restaurant operations by tracing revenue recognised for catering
services to daily sales reports and cash receipts or credit card

settlements, on a sample basis; and

BBIMECEH A ERREHE R EHERSHERNRA LR
TUFHERAFEERE BEREERKENERRBR

ARk
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ERGEVRERNE I XBAEARE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Conta)

Key audit matter (Contd)
TEENEHE(E)

TEERER(E)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Cont d)

BEENBECNARETEESER(F)

Revenue from catering services of the Group’s restaurant operations
(Contd)
EEEEESENERBRBYUA (E)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment in respect
of leasehold improvements of the Group’s restaurants
ESEEEEENEEENNE  BERRBORERNGE

We identified the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment in respect of leasehold improvements of the Group's
restaurants as a key audit matter due to the deteriorated performance
of the Group's restaurant operation and the significant management
judgements involved in determining the recoverable amounts of such
property, plant and equipment during the impairment assessment.

AR BEREERELERARCREREN GBRTEENE
BEERENATREEESIRBEANEEEHE  HEFH
B EREERREEMERENDE - BRELRBRRENGE
BIREBRERSE -

The accounting policy and key sources of estimation uncertainty in
relation to impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
are disclosed in notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the Group's property, plant and
equipment amounted to HK$19,370,000 and an impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of HK$5,796,000 was recognised during
the year then ended.

BREYZE - WELREBENEOGHBER R A HEE L
FERED B EBERNGRE M HRAM T4 RS - R2018F 12431
A BERENYE - BEKEER19,37000087T - BEXHLE
FREERME - BB RRENRERRER5796000ETT °
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®  Using data analytic tools to identify the unusual pattems of revenue
from catering services of the Group's restaurant operations, and
obtaining and assessing the reasonableness of management's
explanation for the unusual pattems identified, if any.
ERIMTAZN BEEEEELENERRBRANT
SHEEA  URREEEBHMANN IS RREANEE
(WA RFHEEAEM -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment in respect of leasehold improvements of the
Group's restaurants included:

BE5 EERZEREENERENERNE - BELRERE
AHENRZF B

o Evaluating management's identification of impairment indicators
by checking if all the restaurants with negative performance
indicators were properly identified;
BERERECZABANALAERRTROERK
EEERBLREDNRNBAER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Conta)
Key audit matter (Contd)
FEERBHE(E)

FRGEYRBRRNBILBEIRE

IREREH(E)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Cont d)

EENEUNARETERGER(F)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment in respect
of leasehold improvements of the Group’s restaurants (Contd)
EREERHENERENNE  BERRBORENE (Z)
Management of the Group considers an impairment indicator exists
when individual restaurant has negative performance indicators, such
as operating loss directly incurred by the restaurant for the year ended
31 December 2018. Accordingly, management of the Group prepared
discounted cash flow projections on those restaurants with operating
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 to assess their value in use
up to the end of the existing lease term.

EXBERERR  EERERABRERANSR (WEZE2018
F12A31 B FERSERERELANKEEHER) - IRTF
ERETR - it - EREEEERZSFREZR2018F12A3I
AIEFESSEEBERNERRUEMARSNERD - UHEE
BEERAHEHRERNEPERE -

Determining whether property, plant and equipment were impaired
required an estimation of the value in use of each restaurant cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the property, plant and equipment
is allocated. The value in use of each CGU was determined by the
management based on the discounted cash flow projections of the
individual CGU, which required the use of key assumptions including
the budgeted revenue, estimated gross margin and expected growth
rate determined based on past performance and management's
expectation for the future changes in the market, as well as a suitable
discount rate.

BEVX  BEAREEALRBETEOYE - BERREE
AENEEERSELEN (REELEM ) NEAEEEL
fhat - BREELBNUMNEREEHEEERBENAEELSE
UMRERRERERIETE - ZRAFREABREREBERR
FEBRBUARRMGZCNBRARSENMEREETNRER
A EETENE RS R R ET B/ -

For restaurants where there were indicators of impairment, our
procedures in assessing the key assumptions used in their respective
discounted cash flow projections included:
REERENSNERENE  BSHAESaRARSRERN
RRTE AT BRRNEF B

*  Evaluating the reasonableness of the budget revenue,
estimated gross margin, expected annual revenue growth rate
with reference to the past performance and management’s
expectation, and evaluating the suitability of the discount rate
used by comparing it with the relevant industry's weighted
average cost of capital; and
SERERAREEEMNRBFERERA - B ER
X EHFRAERRNSEN - WRBKMARRRE
BB R M INAE 19 8 AR AT H BURFHE AR R 1)
BRAM R

®  Considering whether disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements are adequate and appropriate.

EREFAMBRRTOEERERENEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERGEVRERNE I XBAEARE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR&E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

B 35 R 3R BV 1B M A% BT R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FRAGREMBEBRRNEBIXBMRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR&E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is Lee

Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEEBERHEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

2018 2017
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
Pt T TAET
Revenue A 6 230,256 236,371
Other income HeA 8 6,986 2,586
Other gains and losses Hh o &8 9 195 (194)
Raw materials and consumables used P FRIR MR B (54,564) (56,776)
Staff costs BIRAR (92,275) (86,356)
Depreciation e 14 (12,791) (14,266)
Property rentals and related expenses WEHE RARRER X (36,553) (33397)
Utility expenses A®HAX (7,642) (7,623)
Advertising and promotion expenses BERERRAY (10,486) (7,775)
Other operating expenses H i (27,428) (24,968)
Finance costs - interest expenses MEKA — RITERFSFRX
on bank borrowings (490) (480)
Share of loss of an associate NGl — (433)
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 1% ~ BB R R ERREEE 14 (5,796) —
Listing expenses EmRx (5,085) (9,906)
Loss before taxation BRI ES 1B 10 (15,673) (3217)
Income tax expense PSR || (753) (1,357)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABERZERSEE
for the year (16,426) (4,574)
Loss and total comprehensive expense ATATREEFREERR
for the year attributable to TEHRAXERE
— Owners of the Company - YNGIE 2N (15,435) (4,567)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (991) )
(16,426) (4,574)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic (HK cents) — EAR (L) 13 (1.83) (0.66)

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

As at 31 December 2018
R2018F12A31A

2018 2017
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B et TEx FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERY B 14 19,370 31,162
Investment in an associate R E A B E |5 = —
Deferred tax assets BRERIEEE 16 2,996 2777
Deposits 2% 17 11,874 12,527
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITER 8 4,500 5,500
38,740 51,966
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 19 4,825 4294
Trade and other receivables, deposits o REMEKTIE - EE 17 13,250 15,645
and prepayments JSSEARE7 ]
Amounts due from related companies JRE 2 B 8 R FRIE 20 = 308
Amount due from a controlling shareholder e — B AR AR SR 5108 20 58 4,100
Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of — FEURF B2 FIFEIERRAR R FKIR 20
subsidiaries = 140
Amount due from an associate JEL —FelEsk & A B 5008 20 359 61
Tax recoverable AU EIFHIE 1,841 259
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LA S 18 35,699 8392
56,032 33,749
Current liabilities REAR
Trade and other payables and accrued charges B 5 REAM RN TIBKET &R 21 19,655 23,805
Contract liabilities ANAaE 2 1,255 —
Amounts due to related companies JE 1t B 8 R R IE 20 94 681
Bank borrowings RITER 22 4,543 5293
Tax payable e IR 314 434
25,861 31,213
Net current assets RBEEFE 30,171 2,536
Total assets less current liabilities EERAERRBAE 68,911 54,502
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E BRI R

As at 3| December2018
1201812831 A

2018 2017
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FieE TER TET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITRER 2 3,902 12,319
Provision BB 23 3,845 3,345
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBRE 16 32 27
7,779 15,691
Net assets EERE 61,132 38811
Capital and reserves BEXRRE
Share capital R 24 8,600 390
Reserves E4G 52,532 38,643
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARRER AEIEER 61,132 39,033
Non-controlling interests RS — (222)
Total equity AR 61,132 38811

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 173 were approved and authorised FESCR209F3 A2 BHLE R ERET)REE

for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: RENEIBEZEAHBKSRE  WH T A
ITHRARE
WONG PUI YAIN WAN SUET YEE CHERRY
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
afma BRERE
EZ EZF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

SRy v Al
REERRER
For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

ROEHE AL
Non-
Share Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve losses Total interests equity
Bx  RtEE  HitHf  ZHER & FERER  REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fién Fin FiEn TR Fign FiEn T
(note a)
(i)
At | January 2017 RNI7EI A8 390 = 56428 (11,393) 45425 (1431 43994
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year ERFERE AR R - — — (4567) (4567) W] (4574)
Waiver of amount due from More Eam SEEREMRERMore Eam
(as defined n note 27) by group entites (BZ RN ZE - — (1825) - (1.825) 1,825 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 27) MERBAR (FzF27) — — — — — (409) (409
Dividend paid to a non-controling R TFRBARGEERRR
shareholder of a subsidiary (note 12) HRR . (MfsE12) = = = = - (200) (200)
At 31 December 2017 R0I7F 124318 390 — 54603 (15960) 39,033 ) 38811
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year ENBERZER AT = = = (15,435) (15435) (991) (16,426)
Arising from group reorganisation SEEAEL (390) 41,204 (40814) = = = =
Capitalsation issue (note b) BT (D) 6915 (6915) - - - - -
Issue of new shares upon share offer (note ) BB ERETHR (Hzkc) 1,685 48,850 = = 50,535 — 50,535
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares EIHREGERSHA - (9,538) = = (9,538) = (9,538)
Dividend paid to a non-controling shareholder of a TR FIHE AR R R
subsidiary (note 12) IRE (FzE12) — — - — - (250) (250)
Acquisition of addtional interests in subsidiaries (note 29)  WERHTE A RIERSME (H13E29) = = (3463) = (3463) 1,463 (2,000)
At 3] December 2018 018512431 8,600 73,601 10,326 (31,395) 61,132 = 61,132
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSEPR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

Notes:

@)

©

Other reserve represents the aggregate amount of |) the differences between the
considerations received and the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
assets attributable to the relevant interests upon the deemed disposal of partial interest
in subsidiaries; 2) the differences between the considerations paid and the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the relevant interests upon
the deemed acquisition/acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries; 3) acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary by a controlling shareholder as deemed capital contribution;
4) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, which mainly comprises issue of shares by
Big Team Ventures Limited (“Big Team") and the Company to acquire equity interest in
subsidiaries and shareholders’ loans of respective subsidiaries with an aggregate loan balance
of HK$48,330,000; 5) deemed capital contribution from shareholders through waiver of
amounts due to the then shareholders of HK$3,589,000; and 6) HK$1,825,000 upon the
waiver of inter-company loans to More Eamn by group entities that caused an increase in net
assets of More Eamn attributable to non-controlling interests.

On 23 January 2018, the Company capitalised an amount of HK$6,9 15,000 by issuing
additional 691,500,000 shares, credited as fully paid, to the then existing shareholders of the
Company in proportion as nearly as may be to their respective shareholding in the Company
without involving fractions.

On 8 February 2018, the Company issued 68,450,000 shares at HK$0.30 per share upon
the share offer.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN b~ —}
MERERER
For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TAET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loss before taxation BRI B 1R (15,673) (3217)
Adjustments for: AT BIBVELAE -

Interests income ISV ON (310) (18)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREBTE 12,791 14,266

Finance costs REKA 490 480

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  IE¥I% « E Rk EHEE 53 47

Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMNERTE — 75

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% ~ BB &2 ERIREEE 5,796 —

Impairment loss on rental deposits MeReRERE 201 —

Share of loss of an associate JE(E — & A R &R — 433

Provision for onerous contract BEEMEENEE 599 —

Reversal of reinstatement provision BERERR (224) —
Operating cash flows before movements LEECHBHIKERENE

in working capital 3,723 12,066
Increase in inventories FEEN (531) (283)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables, & 5 R EMEKFIE « &

deposits and prepayments RIERRIBR A (18 m) 3,272 (9,801)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B 5 KA MR TR R E

and accrued charges ER O )Em (2,793) 3416
Decrease in contract liabilities BRRERSD (102) =
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to JE A~ RARsE 2 B 5038 OB ) 18 N

related companies (190) 41
Decrease in amount due from JRE LS 128 i A5 SR R TR >

controlling shareholders 45
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from FEMS Y B 1 B JE P AR AR B A

non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries FIER S () 140 (90)
Cash generated from operations REEFENRS 3,564 5,350
Income tax paid ERFTEH (3,669) (3,449)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM REED (A EENRERH

OPERATING ACTIVITIES (105) 1901

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 1k

77



78

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

—IPAN = =
RERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

2018 2017
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
b Fib% FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Interests received BIA S 310 26
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABERRITER — (2,500)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REEERRTER 1,000 =
Advances to related companies [r] R EE A B EVK — (308)
Repayment from related companies /NGl 308 35
Repayment from a controlling shareholder — AR RER 3,997 1,003
Advance to a controlling shareholder A] — B AR AR R AR — (5,000)
Consideration received for disposal of BEFELEXRBMURE
business in prior year = 6,450
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWZE - BFERREDN
and equipment PR EE 425 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEKRE (7,573) (6,118)
Advance to an associate [ —FRIEE & 12 R1EAR (660) (1,044)
Repayment from an associate —EE R RIER 912 —
Net cash flows from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARMGREREF 27 — 3,083
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZFEIFTARSFE (1,281) (4373)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Interests paid ERFE (490) (480)
New bank borrowings raised MESRITEN = 7,000
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITER (9,167) (3513)
Advances from related companies ) NCIEEA 90 1,875
Repayments to related companies [e] B EsE A BlE K (487) (1,441)
Repayment to a controlling shareholder A — B IR AR SRR K — 3)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholder R T HIE A AR AR R
of a subsidiary HIRRE (250) (200)
Payment for acquisition of additional interests WM D Rl IME R K
in subsidiaries (2,000) —
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITEREV PG 5IE 50,535 =
Payments of transaction costs attributable to SNETHIREIEZ Z KA
issue of new shares (9,538) =
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHHREREFR 28,693 3238

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN b~ —}
MERERER
For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BEeRBEESEYIEINFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 27,307 766
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REANREREELEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 8,392 7,626
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF RERNRERBLZEY
THE YEAR REPRESENTED BY BANK (ABITEREES)
BALANCES AND CASH 35,699 8392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of
the Cayman Islands on 21 August 2015 and its shares have been listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 February
2018. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Giant Mind International
Limited (“Giant Mind"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
and is controlled by Ms. Wong Pui Yain (“Ms. PY Wong"). The address of the
Company's registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the

corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as investment holding company and the principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),
which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to

the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

—RER
ARFIR015F8 A2 BREFEAF
E(RE ERERSFMK L E
TREREERAR - HRHMN2018
FLASREERAMERSIMBR AT
([BRFT))GEM LT - EEE K&K
ERABR—HREBELES ([H
BRZHESDEMKITAEMEL -
(MEME R L ) F 2 R Giant Mind
International Limited([ Giant Mind]) © 7
DRI ERE R EEE B
HRERA R ER—ENRE -

AABAREERAR  ERBRRE
FEEBEAIES

meEMBREABT(DBT]  HAK
DEYEEER) 2N BRAaBREAN
FAERAOBREREO TN (TAT) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the preparation for the listing of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange,
the companies now comprising the Group underwent a group reorganisation (the
“Group Reorganisation”) as more fully explained in the section headed “Corporate
Reorganisation” in Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 29 January
2018 (the “Prospectus”). The Group Reorganisation was completed on 23 January
2018 by interspersing the Company between the shareholders of Big Team and
Big Team, and the Company became the holding company of the companies now

comprising the Group.

Prior to the completion of the Group Reorganisation, the Group comprising the
Company and its subsidiaries resutting from the Group Reorganisation have been
under the common control of Ms. PY Wong throughout the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 or since their respective dates of incorporation, where
there is a shorter period and is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the principles of
merger accounting in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") as if the Company had always been the holding

company of the Group.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are prepared
as if the current group structure had been in existence throughout the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 or since the date of incorporation where there is a

shorter period.

The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017 presents the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising the Group
as at the respective dates as if the current group structure had been in existence at

those dates.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

FEMBRRNERRZIEE

REBERRTBRMHIOBERA LT - &
SERRETARBETAARBH
£2018F 1 A2BRMBRER ([HBRE
RS APESEHE ] —SHmFims
EEE((EBEE]) - KEEERN2018
F| 23 BiEBEBIg Team X F HBig
Team Z MR B AR A I T LASERK
MARBKAREBRRE T A RRE

NG

REBSHTHKA - BEESEEMESE
MASE (BEAARRENBAR) R
BHZE2018FK2017F 12831 HIEFE
ok % B R Az B B (VAR B
RAE) —BEXEMER L £RE -
WHERFECEER - Bl A
BRERIREEAGHMAE ((FEE
BN A -Ee-ClE LA
EHE 0 2 R EE IR EE O
SHHERAGE  BUOARE—EAXR
SEMERAR -

AEBEZ2018FR2017F12A31H
HFENGFEBREREMZERER
RERmZPREEEFENERLE
mE - MUNBRENREEEREZE2018
FR017F12A31 BIEFE A
v BEER(UBRESRAR)BRFE -

AEER2017F 12 A31 BHERE T HAM
MERERAEERKENARNEEA
HMEERERE  BERARNEELRE
RZERBHEFE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 1k

81



82

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

3.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current

year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9
BARMBREEAEIR
HKFRS 15

BN BMELENSE 155

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

&L (BRMERERBEEE)—
B2

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BBWBHEERFE25 (BT X)

Amendments to HKFRS 4

BBIBHEERF45% (BFTX)

Amendments to HKAS 28

BB G ERIFE 285 (BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 40

BB GERIFE405 (BETAR)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretation in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS I5 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS
I5 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS || “Construction Contracts” and the

related interpretations.

FERFET B BMBREER ([FHB
BB EER ) REBRTAR
RAFERH LRI ERUBERS
AR EBTA

AEBERAEEERERATHELS
SRS EMNIAI B RN BREE
AR EBRTA

Financial Instruments

ERIA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related Amendments
REEPBHNIBMANMAEERT

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

INER H RIBNRE

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

IO RERONRR 2 2 DB ME

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
EEBHMBHREEREIRRRAN—HERABTENBRELENFIREMTE
As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
TERB B BRELERI014F 22016 FBB 2 FRBCEN —HH

Transfers of Investment Property

BREREMF

BRI XA &SN - RAFEEAHEE
B BRERRAREET A K2R
REBRAFRERBEFENRBRER
BARRK, IR ZE G A BB RKES
HEESRTEEATE

ERPBBRERMNE ISRKIRKEEFE
HZWA ]

AEECRAFEEAERRE BT BH
HERE 155 - BEMBRELEAE S
RRREEGTEF 8K WAL F
BEFERF IR 2EAH ] kAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d@)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Cont d)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

. provision of catering services
J provision of membership services
J sponsorship income from third party suppliers for promotion of their

products at the Group's restaurants

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the accounting policies
resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 6 and 4 respectively.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018
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o RHEERRG
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s FDIHEARAKEERER
REERHROEBRA

FERBEMBREERNE | S5ATEE
AEENBNEEREHBRNERD
RSP 3E6 R4 HR B

BEAEREBYBEEERE I SBITE

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

LHZEHE

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at | January 2018. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been included.

M2018% | A | B&RE MR R ER
MEREELIATHEE - KXEEEN
FENBRTESEENR o

Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously reported under HKFRS I5
at 31 December at | January
2017 Reclassification 2018
R20I18F1A1H
KRR REBBRE
20175128318 WERRIZE 55
2HNREE E¥ioR  HENKREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables and 85 KE MR I K
accrued charges et &R 23,805 (1,357) 22,448
Contract liabilities BREE — 1,357 1,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d@)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Cont'd)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 (Cont d)

As at | January 2018, advances from customers of HK$1,357,000 in respect of
restaurant operation previously included in other payables and other accrued

charges were reclassified to contract liabilities.

The Group has applied HKFRS |5 retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initially applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application, |
January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated losses (or other components of equity, as appropriate) and

comparative information has not been restated.

Based on the assessment of the Group, the Directors of the Company consider
that the application of HKFRS 15 has resulted in more disclosures, however, there
is no material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the

current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont d)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Cont d)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 (Cont d)

The following table summarises the impacts of applying HKFRS |5 on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 for each of
the line items affected. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not

been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

AR EMBREER (FE
MBHEER N REBITR(E)
BERMBREENE SR REEFE

HZBA L&)
EAEREBBHEERE | SBHITE
LHHERE(E)

TR ER RS EREERIE 55
HWAREBR20I18F 12 A3 BHER A
PREEXTEEANTE - KXEH
FRFENBE WEREEN -

HREUBRARNEE

Amounts
without

application of

As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
AEREBERK
WEERE 155
BNOE i
HK$'000 HK$000
FTERT FTEx
Current Liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and B 5 RE MR FIE R
accrued charges BT &R 1,255 20910
Contract liabilities HEHaE (1,255) -

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities under indirect
method for the year ended 3| December 2018, movements in contract liabilities
and trade and other payables and accrued charges have been computed based on
opening combined statement of financial position as at | January 2018 as disclosed

above.

HEERERERNTE
FEHREZ2018F 12831 AILFEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont d)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and (3)

general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions
set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at | January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as at |
January 2018. Any difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at | January 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and other components of equity, without restating comparative

information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resutting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d@)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Contd)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 5. The measurement categories for all other financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group as at | January 2018 remain the same
upon the application of HKFRS 9. The carrying amounts for all financial assets
and financial liabilities as at | January 2018 have not been impacted by the initial
application of HKFRS 9. The Group did not re-designate any financial asset or
financial liability at FVTPL at | January 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL which uses a

lifetime ECL for all trade receivables, which is assessed on an individual debtor basis.

As at | January 2018, the Directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
Group's existing financial assets for impairment using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9 and considered the application of ECL model has no
material impact to the financial position of the Group as at | January 2018 and

results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

3.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

3.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'
BEAVBHEENE 65 HE

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
BBMTEREESE 175 R & 49

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

BE(ARMBHRERERZEEG)-  FEUNBEENTEENL'
2REWR

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BEANBREENE3R (BITA)

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BEAMBREENEIR (BFTA)

Definition of a Business*

FBRTER

REERFUEREAMHE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments!

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'

FERFET B BMBREER ([FHB
MBHEER DREBITR ()
EEMENRERNHTEBRBRE
b U)SESEHIES

AEBYERZEATHERBMHERER
R INE] BB B R E R R BT
K

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

BEEMBRELNFI0RLELET REFEEBENASALCEZHEENHELRA

AR ZE28%% (85T AX)
Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of Material®
BALTENE IR REASH BERAMHERS

LRI B85 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 19
BBGHAERIE 195 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 28
BB GHAERIE 285 (BETA)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BBMEREEL (BFTAR)

ATEIER] ~ MRS

REE R A EEENRSER

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

! Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after |
January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the Directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretation will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 6 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales
and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS
I5 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.

HKFRS 6 also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease payments
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will

be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.

3.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Contd)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$61,616,000 as disclosed in note 25. These arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these

leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
HK$10,485,000 as rights under leases to which HKAS |7 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease payments and included

in the carrying amount of right- of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to elect
the practical expedient of HKFRS 16, which allows the Group not to reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application to opening accumulated losses without

restating comparative information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis and in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in this consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS

36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level |,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 3| December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
J has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries

to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All'intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to

transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont d)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein, which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders

to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interest according to the Group's and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the carrying amount of the assets, and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiaries (i.e.

reclassified to profit or loss).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Merger accounting for business combination involving businesses under common

control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements items of
the combining businesses in which the common control combination occurs as if
they had been combined from the date when the combining businesses first came

under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are combined using the existing book
values from the controlling party's perspective. No amount is recognised in respect

of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
includes the results of each of the combining businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the

common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented as
if the business had been combined at the end of the previous reporting period or

when they first came under common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions

of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of an associate used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net
assets of the associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest
held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the

date on which the investee becomes an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Investment in an associate (Cont d)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest in
an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate

that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, ie. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS 15 in

accordance with transitions in note 3) (Contd)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance

obligation if one of the following critenia is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

J the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

J the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

The Group's revenue from catering, restaurant consultancy and other services are

recognised over time as such services are rendered.

Revenue from membership services and sponsorship from promotion services
are recognised on a time-based method over the subscription period/sponsorship

period respectively.

Licence fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreement. License fee income is determined by

reference to the gross revenue generated by licensee under the agreement.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition (prior to | January 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal

course of business and net of discount.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Catering, restaurant consultancy and other service income is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Annual membership fee and sponsorship income are recognised on a straight-line

basis over the subscription period and sponsorship period respectively.

Licence fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreement. License fee income is determined by
reference to the gross revenue generated by the licensee under the licensing

arrangement.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for a

prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of

the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment on tangible assets (Cont d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all costs necessary to

make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the market place

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS |5 since | January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees or points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon application of

HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

S the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

fair value through other comprehensive income:

J the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

S the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit
or loss, except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a

business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont d)
Financial assets (Cont d)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transition in note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, deposits,
amounts due from related companies, a controlling shareholder, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, an associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within |2 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for all debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Cont d)
Financial assets (Cont d)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transition in note 3)
(Cont'd)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

0 an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,

economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transition in note 3)

(Cont'd)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying

significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transition in note 3)

(Cont'd)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial

asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

()  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transition in note 3)

(Cont'd)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over one year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that

is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 with transition in note 3)
(Contd)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is

calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on [ January 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is

determined at the time of initial recognition.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, deposits, amounts due
from related companies, a controlling shareholder, non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries and an associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets

below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of

the loans and receivables have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
J default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
S it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial

reorganisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of trade
receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments, observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on trade receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on | January 2018)
(Cont'd)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what

the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the

cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the financial asset's carrying amount and the sum of consideration

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,

sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including trade and other payables and accrued
charges, amounts due to related companies and bank borrowings are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans (including the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")) are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the term. In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘loss before taxation' because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs, other than those directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the

effect of the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured
as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the

contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

FREHBERA)
B

EAKERBESHARRRRECR
EHMEE)  MAKEAERRBEZ
BEERMHEESREL A EMGE
BIVRESR R -

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ#ﬁiﬂiﬁ1ﬁ
BEMBREBORERT  LEZE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬂ&$ﬁiﬁ°%%ﬁu
1?5»:‘|'/EJ1 IEE% Emﬁ%muiﬁi ’ /H\
REHEAZFRERENRE(HER
BREEYEBEN)

BRI A IR T E AR RHHIER
NAERBE - EXKERENAHE
TR H) AT AR B IR
B %A NESNEENS - IRARF
HEERIEAH -

shE

iNCESSERIESEN-E b R e

NZERNEER NG (INE)
EITNR SR 5 B 60 8 3 E R i
R o RWMER - DHMNEFHERNERE
BRZANEREREHRE o UMK
FHERE LKA ENFERRE LT
BHhE -

HEEWIEE NEFREERIER fE
EMERZR  REEASEERRD
R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, management of the Group is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the

next financial year.

Estimation of useful lives and impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation
method in determining the related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the management's experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions and
will take into account the lease term (including any renewal option) of the Group's
restaurants. Management of the Group will accelerate the depreciation charge
where the economic useful lives are shorter than previously estimated due to
removal or closure of restaurants. The management of the Group will also write-
off or write-down the carrying value of the items which are technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned. Actual economic useful lives may

differ from estimated economic useful lives.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Estimation of useful lives and impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Contd)

Assessing impairment of the property, plant and equipment requires an estimation
of its recoverable amounts which is the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal. If there is any indication that the property, plant and
equipment allocated to each individual restaurant cash generating unit ("CGU")
may be impaired, such as restaurants operated with operating loss, recoverable
amount shall be estimated for such restaurant CGU. If the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the individual restaurant CGU based on the value in use
calculation, the value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate several key
inputs, such as annual financial budget prepared by the management of the Group
(including the budget revenue, estimated gross margin and estimated operating
expenses), expected annual revenue growth rate and discount rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or there is a downward revision of
future estimated cash flows due to unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances,

a material impairment loss may arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, an impairment loss of HK$5,796,000
was recognised for the property, plant and equipment of the Group. Details of the
impairment assessment on such assets are disclosed in note 4. As at 31 December

2018, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are approximately

HK$19,370,000 (2017: HK$31,162,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable from restaurant
operations including income from catering services (net of discount), restaurant
related sponsorship income from third party suppliers for promotion of their
products in the Group's restaurants and membership fee income from external
customers for privileged services in the Group's restaurants. The Group's revenue

from external customers based on their nature are detailed below:

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

WA R RBER
KA

WARERLZ0E R KRR (2

REKRBYA FOERIFTM) - REE=
THERRASBEBREREERT
REAEBEAENEDRARREIRE
FRASEEREXHERENERR
A) o REBEREPIEENRBINK

EFHMWRAFRIAT :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET

Revenue recognised over time ISR LN

Catering services BEHRY

— European restaurants -BUMBEE 101,030 121,785
— Asian restaurants ~EMERE 127,984 113,271
229,014 235,056
Sponsorship income EBA 800 887
Membership fee income FBRA 442 428
230,256 236,371

The Group applies the practical expedient of HKFRS |5 which allows the Group
not to disclose the information of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contract with customers, as the original expected
duration of the performance obligation arising from the catering services and
membership services in relation to the restaurant operation are all within one year.

Segmental information

The Group's revenue is solely derived from the operation and management of
restaurants in Hong Kong. For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the chief operating decision maker (being the executive directors of
the Company) reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group as
a whole, which are prepared based on same accounting policies set out in note
4. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment and no further
analysis of this single segment is presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Contd)

Segmental information (Contd)
Geographical information

The Group's operation are located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and financial assets) of
approximately HK$29,855,000 (2017: HK$41,776,000) are located in Hong Kong

based on the geographical location of assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual external customer contributes over [0% of total

revenue of the Group for both years.

7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(@)  Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

Ms. PY Wong and Ms. Wan Suet Yee, Cherry were appointed as directors
of the Company on 2| August 2015 and redesignated as executive directors
on |18 May 2017, and Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun,
Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong, Tony were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 23 January 2018. Ms PY Wong is the

chief executive officer of the Company.

During the period from | January 2017 to 28 February 2017, no emoluments
were paid/payable to the executive directors of the Company (including
emoluments for the services as director/employees of group entities prior to
they becoming the Directors of the Company) as the executive directors of
the Company were also employed and remunerated by a related company,
which is controlled by Ms. PY Wong and it is not practicable to allocate
payments to them for their services to the Group and those to other related

companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(2) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont d)

Effective from | March 2017, the Group has entered into employment
contracts with the two executive directors and emoluments from | March
2017 to 31 December 2017 and the year ended 3| December 2018 paid/
payable to them for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group were as follow:

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

7. EERESHMEE)

(@)

ESRTETHAEME (&)

B2017F3A 1B AEECD R
WERTEE L EREALY M
2017831 BZE2017% 128318
REZ20185F12A3IBILEE -
REEERASEEHAMRE
BN/ EAESHMSIT

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ20/184 12 53] HIFFE
Executive Directors Independent non-executive Directors
YiTEs BUFHITES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan Yuk Lun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Cherry  Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
EfE BER 2R At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThR ThR TER TER TER
Fees ik = = 134 134 134 402
Other emoluments; Hthhe :
Salaries and other benefits e REMER R0
and allowance 834 780 = = = 1,614
Retirement benefit scheme RN BIH
contnbutions 18 18 = = = 36
Discretionary bonus (note) Bfsear (Fst) 58 194 — — = 252
910 992 134 134 134 2,304
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12531 HILFE
Executive Directors
WTES
Wan Suet Yee,
Wong Pui Yain Cherry Total
BRI REE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
Fees ok — — —
Other emoluments: Hih & -
Salaries and other benefits and allowance 5o RAEMBR RERL 480 650 1,130
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRBHET IR |5 [5 30
Discretionary bonus (note) BB TEAT (FiiEE) — 16 16
495 68| 1,176

Note: The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference to the
individual's performance.

Wiet + ZEARZZHEARRREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont d)

(a)  Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont d)

No emoluments were paid/payable to the independent non-executive

directors of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2017.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the Directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during both years. None of the Directors of the Company has

waived any remuneration for both years.

(b)  Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year included
two Directors of the Company (2017: one Director) whose emolument is
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining

three (2017: four) individuals are set out below:

7.

ExkEEME (F)

(@)

ESRIETHAEME (&)

HZE017F 12831 BIEFE -
EDNTER AR BB IEHIT
EEHe -

AEEMEFEHERANAE
EXNEAFMH - EARSIE
AR B HINARE BB & 52E)
JIERBERME - ARRIEFMH
BN ZMEFERETAHM -

EEME

FR - AEERERRTHAL
BEARDMEBES (20174F :
—%EE) EMER LA
AR o HER=4 (20174 : &)

EAREEHZMT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
Salaries and other benefits and allowance e RHEMER K2R 2,133 3218
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFFTEIHR 49 88
Discretionary bonus (note) By ETEAT (FT3E) 152 48
2,334 3,354

Note: The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference to the

individual's performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

7. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 7. EEREEME(Z)
(b)  Employees’ emoluments (Contd) b) EEM#E)
The number of the highest paid individuals who are not Directors of the TIMEBENFRARRNERR
Company have their remuneration falling within the following bands: 2EMALEENT

2018 2017

Number of Number of

employee employee

RERE EEHH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 1,000,000/ 7T 3 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7 Z 1,500,000/ 7T — I

3 4

AEBEZE20I8FR2017F 12
A3 BIEFELERA=24 (2017
F R ) REE AT AER
e (ERRSIEMAREE

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the three (2017: four) highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office. None of the three (2017: four) highest paid individuals waived any

emoluments for both years.

ANAZR 5% (B 55 ) S22 B ok 1 A Bl B
WE-=FQ07F : MB) &R
A T B R A S
AT

OTHER INCOME 8. Hfttg A
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Interests income L SWBA 310 18
Credit card commission rebate ERRAEmE 22 28
Consignment income of wines and cigars BEEREMTERA 69 89
Event service income EBRREUA 796 191
Restaurant consultancy service income ZEERRBKRA 3,134 1,681
Forfeited credits from members 2EENEK 73 156
License fee income EEIE-LON 282 132
Compensation from insurance claim R REE 2,018 —
Others Hit 282 291
6,986 2,586
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HttERER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FR FibT
Net exchange gain (loss) B Mas (B518))5 88 24 (72)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment B « BE &R ENEE (53) (47)
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 27) HERBARMEEFE (H:27) — (75)
Reversal of reinstatement provision BEREER 224 —
195 (194)
10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION o
10. FRBLATESIR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Loss before taxation has been arrived BrELRIEIEE 1Rk
at after charging: THIRIE
Auditor's remuneration A EIERT 1,250 1,300
Directors’ remuneration (note 7) BEHM (PE7) 2,304 1,176
Other staff costs: H B TAA
Salaries and other benefits Hre REMERN 86,213 81,709
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRERFH R 3,758 3471
Total staff costs BImRARE 92,275 86,356
Impairment loss on rental deposits (included in MekeREBE GIARMLE
other operating expenses) (note [4) Fsc) (MsE14) 201 —
Provision for onerous contact (included in ERIEA OB E GT AR MEEHRY)
other operating expenses) 599 -
Lease payments under operating leases BELLHER L RETHRE
in respect of land and buildings: K
Minimum lease payments sEHEERN K 29,842 26,845
Contingent rents (note) SAatES (FiEE) 1,640 1,108
31,482 27,953
Note: The operating lease rentals for certain restaurants are determined as the higher of Piist « RIBE B E R Pl G R R

a fixed rental or a predetermined percentage on revenue of respective restaurants
pursuant to the terms and conditions that are set out in the respective rental

agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE Fri8®iB <
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BENEH -
Current tax BNEAR R 1,152 2775
Over provision in prior years BMAEFEHEEERE (185) (222)
967 2,553
Deferred tax (note 16) BRI (FHaE16)
Current year REE (592) (1,196)
Attributable to a change in tax rate AR EEE 378 =
(214) (1,196)
753 1,357

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%

on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

R2018F3 8218 EBLES BB
201785 (1BET) (B75) GBI ER
([ER]) - H3| AMRHIFIEH =4
B - ZERN2018F3IA2BRERA
FERARBATIERR - BEMAHIF
BHEHE  cEREEEENE2E
BATTHEAEA2S%MBEEH - ™
B2 A BB I NIA165%8) T E
B - THEMERMAT c EEER
RS HIENR | 6 5% — T RAEFL

Hit - BAXAFER  B288BTLZ
bt R TG MR 8.25% 5T B BB NS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

Fr8®iB (&)

AERNAEHAX TR RS
tEERERAIIRHAEREED

T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TAET
Loss before taxation BRBEATE (15,673) (3217)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) BFEHHE165%
(20174 + 165%) st BRI (2,586) (531)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose AANBRZ AR B2 1,197 2491
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEARBARNRBRE 97 )
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised TRERANEERNHEY & 1,823 40
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously PR LA EHERTRE RS
not recognised vE — (353)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences W R R A I L BB
not recognised % 388 =
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary BRI R RER R AT AL
differences previously not recognised EREENTETE — (135)
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate EfE—falE A RBRO TR 2 = 7l
Over provision in prior years BEFEEERE (185) 222)
Income tax at concessionary rate REBREFAENRENR (165) =
Decrease in opening deferred tax assets resulting from BERARE N REREELERIE
a decrease in applicable tax rate BERD 378 —
Income tax expense for the year FERARERRX 753 1,357

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note |6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDEND

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Ideal Profit Corporation Limited (*Ideal
Profit”) declared and paid dividend of HK$20 (2017: HK$16) per share of which
HK$250,000 (2017: HK$200,000) was paid to its non-controlling shareholders and
HK$750,000 (2017: HK$600,000) was paid to its immediate holding company, Big
Team. Other than disclosed above, no dividend was paid or declared by any group

entities during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2018.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the

Company is based on the following data:

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

IR

BZE2018F12A3IBILEFE - BHEA
RARN(DEE DS IR REMRE &R0
AT (20174 : 167T) + HH1250,000
7T (20174 200,000 7T ) IR F &
JEIERRAR R + 750,000 7T (20174 -
600,000 7T ) Ik T H B # 2R 2 FlBig
Team ° Br E XFTHEESN - B Z=2018
FRABLEFEREEEERIRTH
BEIRERRE (2017F - &) -

HZE20I8FR20I17F12A31B1EF
B ARETERAEERIRS

RNAREENEZTEZE2018F 12831
B IEF R AHE R AR &, o

BRER

EINSE N e 2
THIBHE ¢

2018 2017
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share RAUGEBREREENER 15,435 4567
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the RRRIHEAANEIEFERER
Company (HK$000) (F#%T)
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ FIAGTESREAREIER AR 842,463 691,550

the purpose of basic loss per share ('000)(note) nEEFHE (FR) (HEE)

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic loss per
share for the years ended 3| December 2018 and 2017 was calculated based on
the assumption that the Group Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue of the

Company's shares (as detailed in note 24(c)) had been completed on | January 2017.

No diluted loss per share is presented for both years as there was no potential

ordinary share outstanding.

BisE : EZ=2018F K207 12831 ALLE
& - AU EERENBENLBR
MEFHEDERBREREEARA
DEIRGDEAR BT (BRI
24(0)BER20175 1 B I BERETE o

AR ERTAEEEETYEN L]
BB B 2 1) v M 5 R RO S A
BB -

dff [
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

4. Y% WEKRE

Leasehold Furniture Equipment
Improvements  and fixtures and tools Computers Total
HE BRR
VS EE#E RERIA E i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n TR THER THER THER
COsT A
At | January 2017 R20I17FI1A1B 55,763 10964 21,091 2037 89,855
Additions AE 575 693 74 28 2238
Disposal HE — — (75) — (75)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 27) HERBLR (M727) (3016) 24) (1256) (41) (4555)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 1 A3IA 5332 11415 20,502 224 87,463
Additions e 2,300 1,724 3015 659 7,698
Disposal/written-off HE /s — (459) (1,363) (139) (1,961
At 3| December 2018 2018%12A31R 55,622 12,680 22,154 2,744 93,200
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/ RitiE /A
IMPAIRMENT
At | January 2017 201751 A1H 23818 6214 11743 1459 43034
Provided for the year FREGE 8447 1,908 3554 357 14266
Eliminated on disposal R SR - - (28) - (28)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 27) WERBAR (FF27) (589) an (491 (20) (1171)
At 3 December 2017 201751 A31A 31676 805! 14778 1,796 56,301
Provided for the year FRBE 7,598 1,638 3246 309 12,791
Eliminated on disposallwritten-off AHE/MEEREH = (205) (749) (104) (1,058)
Impairment loss recognised REBXRED
in profit or loss HEESR 5,796 = = = 5,796
At 3| December 2018 2018512431 45,070 9,484 17,275 2,001 73,830
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 3| December 2018 2018%12A31R 10,552 3,19 4879 743 19,370
At 31 December 2017 201751 A31R 21,646 3,364 5724 428 31,162
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements MEMEEE
Fumiture and fixtures GRREERE
Equipment and tools RERTE
Computers B

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 4 August 2018 and
|2 October 2018, the business operation of a restaurant of the Group under
the trading name of "RHODA" had been suspended since September 2018
and subsequently ceased in October 2018, accordingly, an impairment loss
of HK$3,126,000 on property, plant and equipment in respect of leasehold
improvements of RODHA is charged to profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2018, after taking into consideration of the sales proceeds of
HK$850,000 for disposal of certain property, plant and equipment of RODHA
to an independent third party. The Group has also early terminated the lease
agreement with the landlord of the premises of RHODA. As a result, the rental
deposits paid by the Group to the landlord amounting to HK$201,000 is forfeited
and such amount is charged to profit or loss during the year ended 3| December
2018.

The management of the Group considers that an impairment indicator on certain
restaurants exists as there were operating loss directly incurred by these restaurants
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The aggregate carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment in respect of leasehold improvements of these restaurants is
HK$2,670,000 (before impairment loss) as at 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the
Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of each of these restaurant
CGUs.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

14. Y% - WEKRREE)

FitE - BERKREBEE HRET
FROBGEETINE :

Over the term
of the lease
RSB
20%

20%

33'.%

HIWARTBEAB20I18F8A14B K
2018F 10 NRAMAEMESE A%
BELATRHODA |RIRE S 7 EBH X
LEEEI8FIARE R - WHEER
018F I0AFLEEE - At - L5T KA
BYE = HERODHAL T - &
B X 3% 4 8 & P15 5/ 78 850,000 8 LAY
RE BZE2018FNA3HLEFES
FARODHATEEMERENTE - BF
RERFEEE3,126000/8 TaT AR
& AEENEIRFRIEERHODAY
EEXFTTUMBERZ - Bt - ~EE
REEZF2010008THESEEE
w2 - MABFIEREZE2018F 128
3IAIEFER AR

{

AERBEREERRE TEBRFLAED
%2 EAREZE2018F12A3ALEFE
BEZEEBREEEENLEEE - »
0185128318 - ZEEERHEENE
RENME  BELEENRELER
2,670,000/ 7T (REHRIEEE) < Bt
AEBUZEEERReEAENUNT
el & EETEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

The recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment allocated to these
restaurant CGUs at 31 December 2018 has been determined based on a value in
use calculation. The recoverable amount of each restaurant CGU was determined
based on the discounted cash flow method with a discount rate of 15.5%, annual
financial budget prepared by the management of the Group (including the budget
revenue, estimated gross margin and estimated operating expenses) and the
projection up to the end of the lease term of respective restaurants with annual
revenue growth rate ranging from -2% to 0%. The assumptions of discount rate
and annual revenue growth rate are determined based on expectations for the
market development and is not expected to exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the catering industry in Hong Kong. The estimation of gross
profit and operating expenses is based on the restaurant’s past performance.
The Group management considers that the property, plant and equipment other
than leasehold improvements of these restaurants could be transferred and used
by other restaurants operation or disposed of with sales proceeds that at least
covered their carrying amounts, accordingly the impairment loss recognised on
these restaurants are mainly allocated to the category of leasehold improvements.
Based on the above assessment, an impairment loss of HK$2,670,000 is recognised
on the property, plant and equipment in respect of leasehold improvements over
these restaurants of the Group and charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE

Details of the Group's investment in an associate are as follows:

ME - BRERRZEZ)
M20I18F1A3NE  PEEZEEER
SELBNNYE  BENRENTR

E&BERECAEEMEEE - §F
EEHREEBMMNAKESERER
RAeRE: AEEERERENGE
Fﬁﬁﬁ%(a%ﬁﬁwkxﬁﬁ%ﬂ
mﬁggﬁiﬁﬁaﬁﬂﬂﬁmf
Hﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁ’ﬁ@ BET  BRIREA155% -
ﬁETWAWEIEQ&ﬂ%°%ﬁ%
REBRAERENBRRBETSER
EHET BRI 2BABBEHREN
FHRAERE - EFIREERIZHE
HERZEMNBTRE - A5BER
EBRA  ZEEEREMEEEINGY
¥ BERFETEEVHEMEE
REFERKLEE RS HREERH
EMEHIE - AtZEEERRANRE
EEEFENREHEMEREER - 1R
B AR BE2018F 12831 B1E
FE  BASEZSEREHENMES
Mm% BERREERRESSE
2,670,000/ T ET AtB 2

REE D RNIRE EHE N TEX
AEERBEDRNREFBWT -

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Cost of investment in an associate, unlisted (note) — FEE & A RIAIRERNA - FE £ (FiTaE) = —

Loan to an associate m]—fEEE & R R B 6,900 6,900
Less: share of post-acquisition losses that are R EIEW B R &R

in excess of the cost of investment (BHREKAK) (6,900) (6900)

Note: The Group subscribed 30% interest in the associate at subscription price of HK$30
on |3 January 2016.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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5.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (Conta) 5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

RBEERRNRE TABE QA RE

R(E)
. . ) ) &= F A — AN I B AR =
The details of the Group's investment in an associate are as follows: ASRER—REERRNREFFH
T
Place of Principal place Issued and fully paid ~ Proportion of equity interests held by Proportion of voting
Name of entity incorporation of operation share capital the Group as at 3| December power held by the Group Principal activities
RELR SEER L 2 TEEENY  CRORMERE  HENANBLARERREA  ARERKREELA IERH
2018 2017
Potato Head Hong Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 30% 30% 30% (note ) Investment holding
Kong Limited (note b)
(*Potato Head (HK)")
Potato Head Hong BB 55 1007 30% 30% 30%(izEa) RAER(MzEb)
Kong Limited
([Potato Head
(HK))
Notes: iz -
(@)  Pursuant to the shareholders agreement entered into by the Group and the other () WREAKEHEPotato Head (HK) (A&

shareholder of Potato Head (HK), an independent third party to the Group, the
Group has the right to appoint one out of the three directors of Potato Head (HK).
Accordingly, the Group is able to exercise significant influence over Potato Head (HK).

(b)  Potato Head (HK), through its subsidiary, operates a mixed-use entertainment venue (b)

which comprises retail shop, cafe, bar and restaurant.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements

thereon during the current and prior years.

BB E=7) K RRET MR R
& - AEBAEZ FPotato Head (HK)
—REEPHN—F - Bt AEEA
#Potato Head(HK) TR ERFE S

Potato Head (HK)i B E M E A A&

LS BRRLSH - RETER
% - UIEEE - EERER -

l6. EHIA
ATRREER E—EAFENERNE
EHIELE (BE) RHEH -

Accelerated

accounting  Accelerated

Tax losses  depreciation  tax depreciation Total

BIAEE MESTHE MEFRTE Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET T TiERr TER

At | January 2017 R2017F1 A 18 651 558 (655) [,554
(Charge) credit to profit or loss PR (F0ER)FTA

(note 1 1) (F=E 1) (304) 1,088 412 1,196

At 31 December 2017 R2017F 124318 347 2,646 (243) 2,750

Effect of change in tax rate PREH o E = (378) = (378)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss KBS (HBR)FTA

(note 11) GE) (113) 712 ) 592

At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A318 234 2,980 (250) 2,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

16.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position,

the following is the analysis of the deferred taxation:

6.

IERERLIR ()
IS RIEEBIANT - AL 2IERE
BIRRZ A -

As at 31 December

®I12A831 8
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE 2,996 2777
Deferred tax liabilities ERETIEER (32) (27)
2,964 2,750

At 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$17,754,000 (2017: HK$7,390,000) available for offset against future profits.
Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$ 1,418,000
(2017: HK$2,100,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining tax loss of approximately HK$16,336,000 (2017:
HK$5,290,000) at 31 December 2018, due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has deductible temporary difference of
approximately HK$2,350,000 (2017: Nil). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

R2018F 128318 - AEEERHH
MIEEE417,754,0005 7T (201745 -
7,390,000 L) + Al BIEE AR R A
Fl - BEERBEECHZSERY
1,418,000 7T (20174F :2,100,00077T)
B o AR m R A TR -
AB20I18F 12 A3 BB THIEEIE
#716,336,00078 7T (20174F : 5,290,00058
T)RREERBEEE - HABBEIE
PREA&EES o

R2018F12A31 8  AEBE UMY
B Z 88 492,3500004 7T (20176 « &) °
R A REE L Al A AR Y
REBZEAB AT - HAEBETE
RREIREREEERRTRHIEE
E o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 17. BEZREMEKRRE - REEES

;A

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Trade receivables from restaurant operation REZBLENE FRIFIE 3,693 4,364
Rental deposits Heke 10,485 10,614
Other deposits Hipge 4,626 4931
Other receivables Ho A e U R IE 4,630 1,392
Prepayments and others TARTFRIE R HAth 1,690 6,871

Total trade and other receivables, B 5 REMBKIE - ke K
deposits and prepayments BN FIBERE 25,124 28,172

Analysed as: SR

Current BIER 13,250 15,645
Non-current FERNHR 11,874 12,527
25,124 28,172

P2018F 12A31HR2018%F1AIH -
HESITHNEENE SRIFIESRIA
3,693,00078 7T 12 4,364,000/ 7T,

As at 31 December 2018 and | January 2018, trade receivables from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$3,693,000 and HK$4,364,000 respectively.

Usually, there is no credit period for the restaurant operation except for certain BE EEREVEREESR  HEAEE
customers in which credit period ranging from 4 to 30 days is granted by the RHE4Z0REERNE TEPRIN -
Group. The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly by cash or credit AEBEAEFH ﬁ%f%?ﬂix%ﬁé

card settlement. The settlement terms with credit card companies are usually within

BEARERH ( F%Tmﬁiﬁﬁﬂwﬁﬁﬂ)ﬁ%
7HA -

7 days after the billing date which is also the service rendered date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Cont'd)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables from restaurant operations
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the service rendered

date, at the end of the reporting period.

EZRHEHMEWE - RERAN
I (&)

AT AR RS R R 5 2 A (R
R BEIEE ) 2N REBELEN
B SENGIBRRER DT ©

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

0 to 30 days 0£230H 2,094 3,073
31 to 60 days 3IE60H 766 802
61 to 90 days 61 290H 200 345
Over 90 days #3890 8 633 |44
3,693 4,364

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to credit card
companies and diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,599,000 which are past due as
at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$633,000 has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as the amounts are either
from counter-parties with good history of repayment or subsequently settled. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$ 1,291,000 which
were past due for which the Group had not provided for impairment loss.
The Group considered that the amounts are recoverable because of the good

repayment records by the counterparties or the amounts are subsequently settled.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

ERERFD R RTHY EiE /R 28R
LR FNE Z MR &R T
|RE -

R20184F 12 A31 B - Wik HEAmE] -
BREAEEE 5 1,599,000/ TTHEBEEMHA
AEENE SEKRIBERA - RES
ER%EBR + 633,000/ L E BHI90K K
AEBPRAES  AFEREERET
BREHRNZFHTIERES - A&
BV RGBS ESFEEMNERR

R2017F12A318 - AEBE HEKZK
TR BEIEREATEA R 291,000 7T
B EARE MR - AR B AR IR
HEBBRE - AREF HRENREE
Rif - ARERRAIKEEATIERE
PEIREEARRIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 17. BESREMERNE  ZERAHN
(Cont'd) I (&)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired: BEAHERRBENE 5 R RIERER
N
2017
HK$'000
FET
31 to 60 days 31260H 802
61 to 90 days 61 290H 345
Over 90 days #8i890H 144
[,291
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables and deposits as at MR2018F 2A3I HWE 5 R EMEW
31 December 2018 are set out in note 31. P RIES R ET G EEERN
3] °
BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 18. S|ITEHERAS BERARTENR

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a
bank to secure the bank borrowings of the Group (as set out in note 22), which
carry fixed interest rate ranged from 1.09% to 1.57% per annum as at 31 December

2018 (2017: fixed interest rate ranged from 0.56% to 1.39% per annum).

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held and short term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less and carry interest at prevailing market rate
at 0.01% (2017: 0.01%) per annum at 31 December 2018.

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 3| December 2018 are set

out in note 31.

R20I18F 128318 » BEMFEITER
EARRGASERITERMER TR
TR (FRRTEE22) - K2018%F 12
A3 BREEFMEI09%ZE 1.57%:1 R
(20175 : REFFHE0S56% £1.39%
R e

RITHEARIA S BIENR2018F 12431 H
R RREBEA=ASUNUT
WIRBITHHFEME0.01% (20174 :
001%) 5t B RRERIRITIER ©

HZ2018F 12831 BIEFERRETE
FHEHRHTEEI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

9.

20.

INVENTORIES 9. &E&
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Food, beverages and other consumables B Ran RE A EREm 4,825 4,294
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A 20. FEW ENEBEEAR, —RERK

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES/AN ASSOCIATE

Amounts due from related companies, a controlling shareholder and non-

controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured and interest-free. Other than those trade nature
balances as disclosed below, the remaining balances have no fixed repayment term.
In the opinion of Directors of the Company, the amounts are expected to be

recovered within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, approximately HK$140,000 of the amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries were trade nature with credit term of
60 days from the date of invoices and aged within 60 days based on the invoice

date at the end of the reporting period.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

R/WE D RFERRR,— B

ERNCIE S

RRBEBLAT  —BERBRREHER
BRI RAIR

ZHARERRRRE BRI XEKE
HE SIEEREI - SRRLEETEEK
B ARREFRR  ZCRBHRR
HEPRET —FEARKD -

R2017F12A31 8 + ERHTBRRIFEE
R A% 3R A0 FRI8 A 47 140,000 7T + 523K
EEEH1ME  FENHABRERAME
60K BERER BOR M (IRIFIHRE HIRE
ZHHmE) °



20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES/AN ASSOCIATE (Contd)

Amounts due from related companies, a controlling shareholder and non-

controlling shareholders of subsidiaries (Contd)

Details of the amount due from related company are as follows:

20.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

Y ENBEHLR, —BERR
R/MBEARFERRR,— B

ENRRE(E

REBEBLAT  —BERBRREMHER
FFFERRRAE ()
FEWEERE 2 RISURRF RN T -

Maximum amount

outstanding during

As at the year ended

As at 3| December | January 31 December
BZNA3BLEERS

&1 RI2A31H RIAIR AEBEEH

Name 2018 2017 2017 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET TET
Jia Group Limited Jia Group Limited = 308 308 = 308

Jia Group Limited is 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong. The amount was non-trade

nature.

As at 31 December 2018, the amount due from a controlling shareholder of
HK$58,000 is trade nature with credit term of 60 days from the date of invoices
and aged within 60 days based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2017, the amount due from a controlling shareholder
included an amount of HK$103,000 which was trade nature with credit term of 60
days from the date of invoices and aged with 60 days based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period and the remaining amount of HK$3,997,000 which
was non-trade in nature. The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2018 is HK$4,100,000 (2017: HK$5,000,000).

Jia Group Limited F E LB 2 - 5 50%
B o ZEFNEBIFEHILE -

R20I18F 12A31H » Elk—RIZ=RE
RERIBAS580008TT * ZNEBES
e FEHAERZAMBORER
IR ABORN (RBERMSHREZHEM
FE) o R2017F12A318 « B —RiE
AR A% 3R RO FRIE E24E 103,000 7T + 33K
EEES51LE  FEHREEEAMR
60K BRRER ROORA (RIS AR
ZREME) - MR T 3,997,000 TT/E
FBSME - HE20I8F12A31HILE
FRENZmAEESER4100000/E T
(20174 : 5,000,000/ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A 20.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES/AN ASSOCIATE (Contd)

Amount due from an associate

The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed
repayment term. The Directors of the Company expected that such balances will

be recovered within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

Amounts due to related companies

Details of the amounts due to related companies are as follows:

Y ENBEHLR, —BERR
R/MBERRFFERRR,— B

ERRREE)

i —mEBE A TRE

ZRABIFESIEE  EER 28K
EETESHR - ARREERHLF
RARBN IS AR 1218 A RKkE -
FE{S BB R RIFRIE
BB A RISURRFRIT -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB7 F57
Trade nature (note a): BoHME (Miza) -
Altaya Wines Limited (“Altaya") REAFBERRAR([RZE]) N/A 191
Cigarro Limited (“Cigarro”) Cigarro Limited([ Cigarro ) 4 3
4 194
Non-trade nature (note b): FEHIE (Hiztb)
PC Asia Limited (“PC Asia") ST ER AR (HRIEM]) — 487
Golders Way Company Limited Golders Way Company Limited
("Golders Way') ([ Golders Way ) 90 —
90 487
94 681
Notes: BIsE

(@)  Balances with i) Altaya, which is controlled by close family member of Mr. Pong
Kin Yee, a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary as at 31 December 2017, ii)
Cigarro, which is controlled by Ms. PY Wong, are trade nature, with a credit period
from purchase of goods of 30 days. These trading balances with related companies
are unsecured, interest-free and aged within 30 days based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period.

(b)  PCAsiais 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong. The amount due to PC Asia was unsecured,
interest-free and with no fixed repayment term, but settled in January 2018. Balance
with Golders Way, which is 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong, is non-trade nature, with a
credit period of 30 days from the date of notice for monthly rental payment.

136  JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ZREEARATF

@@ Hi)KRI(FR2017F 12831 BHANE
A EIFEHR AR AR 3R R R BA 5T AE M3 3R
#il) + ii) Cigarro ( B E MM BN 20 42 ) &9
EHRBESILE  FEHABEEMD
#8308 o NIREHA - ZSHEH A
ANESERAERE 2B RIE%E
FHERREA30B A o

(b) TR TMNAEME L LHEAS0%E
= o FET ML T8 M B BB A R
# - 2EREBRTESSR - HEER
20185 | AXXf ° B2 Golders Way(
EMAZTHE50%)NERBIEE S
HE  FEHAFSARSMAFKANA
HA#E30H o



21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

EZRHEMENRERETER

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES/ 21.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables and accrued charges

BHEE

B REMEAGRERENER

2018 2017

HK$000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Trade payables B SRR 11,744 9,799

Other payables: H it FEFTFIA

Accrued staff related costs FERT B TARRAR A 2,657 2512
Other payables and other accrued charges (note) Hoth fE TR R HLA st B

(Hf&E) 5,254 1,494

19,655 23,805

Note: As at 3| December 2017, included in the other payables and others accrued charges
is balance of approximately HK$5,002,000 which represents the accrued charge for

listing expenses.

The credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The following is an ageing

analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

BiaE : 2017612831 B - EMEMZRIER
HipfEETE B B IEA#RA)5,002,0007%8
AR EMASZKERIER) -

BEERNEEHR30H - NREH

reporting period: RO
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
TET TAET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 10,020 7,041
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,426 2,755
61 - 90 days 61 £90H 125 =
Over 90 days #@iE90H 173 3
11,744 9,799
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

21.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES/ 2l BESRHEMEMRERESER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd) BRARE#E)
Contract liabilities AHEE
31 December | January
12A31H IAIA
2018 2018*
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Restaurant Operation BERE
Deposits received for catering services at LN E BRI E SRR 2 A
restaurants Be 853 987
Prepaid membership fee BANgEE 402 370
1,255 1,357
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustment from the application of HKFRS * AR NS HERERAE BN HRE
I5, see note 3.1 for details. RRIF 15R R IELATRE  FERM
A
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the carried-forward contract liabilities BZE0I8F12A3IBLEFE @ SiA%E
as at | January 2018 in relation to the Group's catering services and membership MESREREEBRAME E/\\ZOIB
fee income are fully recognised as revenue. FIAIBNEEEENEBRHHRER
WA -
The Group's typical payment terms which impact the amount of contract liabilities ARBEFECHASHEESHENAR
recognised are as follows: NRGEROT :
Deposits received for catering services at restaurants EEEIRBEENEE
The Group normally receives approximately 50% deposits in advance from HRASEEERRNEEMNS - ~A5E
customers for catering services in relation to events to be organised at the Group's BETRK R P YEE AR £50% )
restaurants. The Group also receives deposits in advance from members of a BE - ARETELEKIAEE-—HE
restaurant of the Group and the members will in return be granted equivalent EBNgBERe MERD®R ZFEE
cash value food and beverage credits for the catering services at that restaurant R R RS % aﬁ%’&ﬁﬂﬁk#@
during the subscription period, which is normally within one year from the annual RemeEfREs  RBH—KeEe
membership card issued to the member. All of these deposits and credits are ERgBFEREA—FR - EZ%??@&
non-transferable and non-refundable. BN A EE A TR -
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES/

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contd)

Contract liabilities (Cont d)

Prepaid membership fee

The Group receives annual membership fees in full amount at the beginning of

the annual subscription period. Prepaid membership fee will be recognised on a

time-based method over the subscription period which will normally be one year.

The prepaid membership fees are non-transferable and non-refundable.

BANK BORROWINGS

21.

22.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

ESRAMENREBERESNER
BHEEE)

BREE(E)

BENBEE
AEERFEREDRURE2EGEF
E -BNgEEENRBHNCGEER
—FINERKBNAAER - BNE
Eg’i Tiﬁ‘uﬁETT /T/\°

ﬁEﬁﬁ%a’A

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Secured bank borrowings BERRITEN 8,445 17,612
Carrying amounts repayable FERBR TR TIREE
of the bank borrowings*:

Within one year —FRQ 4,543 5293
More than one year, but not exceeding two years ~ —F A B NHBBME 2,668 5293
More than two years, but not more than five years M JA_EE BB R F 1,234 7,026
8,445 17612

Less: Amounts due within one year B REBRE T —FA
shown under current liabilities El iz 0F /2] (4,543) (5,293)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FERBEETIITIE 3,902 12,319

& The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreement.

* HEFUADERNERBEMEETE

HEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 1k



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

22.

BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowings are subject to variable interest
rate, of the higher of 2.50% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
(“"HIBOR") or the banks cost of funds. As at December 2017, the bank borrowings
are subject to variable interest rate of the higher of 2.50% per annum over HIBOR
or the bank’s cost of funds and 2.50% per annum below Prime Rate or the bank’s
cost of funds. The weighted average interest rate is 3.52% per annum as at 3|
December 2018 (2017: 2.83% per annum).

During year ended 3| December 2018, the Group has voluntarily early repaid bank
borrowing of approximately HK$4,063,000.

As at 3| December 2018, the bank borrowings of the Group are secured by
bank deposits of HK$4,500,000 (2017: HK$5,500,000). The bank borrowings of
the Group are guaranteed by corporate guarantees for unlimited amount by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and
2017. As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings of the Group were also
guaranteed by personal guarantee for unlimited amount by Ms. PY Wong and
such personal guarantee was released prior to the completion of the listing of the

Company's shares on the Stock Exchange in February 2018.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

22.

RITIER (&)

R2018F 128318 « RITEREF
FE2 50% MEBRITRERFE ([ BB
BITAERE DIRTESK AR S
EINZEIFIEETE - R2017F 128 - R
E R EFIE250%ME A RITR
EREIRITESKAEFNERES
FIER250%KRITE SR ANE = H&
PUFBFIRET S 2 20184 12 A31 BEYAN
ETHEFIR E352% (20174 « FF|R
2.83%)

HE0I8FE2A3IBILLEE  A&EH
B BRI R EEIEITERL4063,000/8
jTE o

R2018F 12831 B AEEETEX
PASR 1777 304,500,00058 78 (20174 -
5,500,000/ 7T ) fEE R  M20185F &
20175128318 - AEBEHRITEZAR
RAIRAREE THBAREREAR]
FERIEER - R2017F 128318 - A%
BERTESRIMAEME LT EREEA
EREER - BZEAERRER20I8F
2 R B R A7 FE B8k A2 BT = e K Al R
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23.

24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

PROVISION 23. BB

Onerous Reinstatement
contract works Total
BEMEEHN BEIR Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FEx TR
At | January 2017 R2017F 1 A1 H — 3514 3514
Disposed upon disposal of HEME QR E (PHE27()) — (169) (169)

subsidiaries (note 27(a))

At 31 December 2017 2017812 A31 B — 3,345 3,345
Addition nE 599 125 724
Reversal & mEl — (224) (224)
At 31 December 2018 2018512831 H 599 3,246 3,845

The provision for reinstatement works related to the estimated cost of reinstating
the rented premises to be carried out at the end of respective lease periods. These
amounts have not been discounted for the purpose of measuring the provision for

reinstatement works as the effect is not significant.

The provision for onerous contract represents the management's best estimate on
onerous lease contract of a restaurant as the management of the Group considers
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation under such lease contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received from the relevant lease contract.
The unexpired term of the lease is 2 years. As at 31 December 2018, the present
value of the anticipated irrecoverable costs on the lease contract for the period

from | January 2019 to the end of the lease term is HK$599,000.

SHARE CAPITAL 24.
The Group

The share capital as at | January 2017 and 3| December 2017 represented the
aggregate paid-up capital of Big Team and the Company.

NS

BEETRAEESHENRETNEE
MEMEROGERAER - ARFEL
TEK - MIEFTEEETRAER

RAEFR °

<

AR AEEERERRENERLEE
BB T RBH) A R AN BB TR
HIEAEES NESMEERE -
BEMAOREBAEEBHEENER
MERNMREMG o AEmiE &R
BME - R2018F 128318 » HEAHK
HTBET AR EIR AR B2019F 1 A 1A
ZHEHMAR BRI AR E /599,000
AT

B
ALE

P2017F 1B 1 BKR2017F 12831 BH
W% AN$E Big Team M AN AIRI AR ABAR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

The Company

The detailed movements of the Company's share capital are set out below.

24. BAX(E)
AT

ARRIBANES FEHINAT

Number of shares Amount
B #E o]

HK$ HK$000

BT TAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FR00I BTALBR
Authorised: EE
At | January 2017 and 3| December 2017~ F2017€1 AIBK201712A31 A 38,000,000 380,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital (note a) EEBRA SN (KizEa) 4,962,000,000 49,620,000 49,620
At 31 December 2018 R20I18F 12831 A 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTREEME
At | January 2017 and 31 December 2017~ 1201751 1B &2017F 12431 H — -
Shares issued pursuant to the Share Swap ~ RIBERDEI BB ITIRA (MzEb)

Agreement (note b) 49,999 500 -
Capitalisation issue (note c) BER{#T (Bratc) 691,500,000 6,915,000 6,915
Issue of new shares upon the share offer (note d) IR B EHBTHR (Hiakd) 168,450,000 1,684,500 1,685
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F 128318 860,000,000 8,600,000 8,600

The Company was incorporated on 21 August 2015 in the Cayman Islands with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. One share, credited as fully paid, was allotted and issued on 2| August 2015
to the subscriber of the Company, which was later transferred to Giant Mind on

the same date.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

ARARIR0I5F8 A2 BERSRH ST
AL JEERA 380,000/ © 5
#38,000,000 R AR E1H0.01 & LY IR
7 o 20158 A2I B » BFRLE RE1T
—RARIERRORND AR RIRE
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

The Company (Contd)

Notes:

@

On 23 January 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000 by the creation of an additional 4,962,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each.

As part of the Group Reorganisation and pursuant to a share swap agreement dated
23 January 2018 entered into among the Company and the then shareholders of Big
Team (the “Share Swap Agreement”), the Company acquired an aggregate of 50,000
ordinary shares in Big Team (representing the entire issued share capital of Big Team)
from all the then shareholders of Big Team, and issued and allotted an aggregate of
49,999 new shares to them as consideration, credited as fully paid, in the proportion

as nearly as may be to their respective shareholding in Big Team.

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on
23 January 2018 conditional upon the share premium account of the Company being
credited as a result of the share offer and listing of the Company's shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Directors of the Company were authorised to capitalise the amount
of HK$6,915,000 from the amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company to pay up in full at par of 691,500,000 shares for allotment
and issue to the persons whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company at the closed of business on the same date, pro-rata to their then existing

shareholdings in the Company without involving fractions.

On 8 February 2018, the Company issued 168,450,000 shares at HK$0.30 per share

upon the share offer.

All shares issued rank pari passu with other existing shares in all aspects.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

24. BAE)

XRTF(F)
M

@ 20181 A238  ERERENR
0.01 7 7T #14,962,000,000 % 28 51 i
3 - NRAIAEE IR 281 380,000 7T
# 250,000,000 7T ©

b) (EAEEEEN—FH RBREALQH
K Big Team & B AR AT 32 B 1 4
20184 | A23 Bk = B (1A%
B ]) - N2 R EBig Team &
B 2 B AR R UK BB Rig TeamB ££50,000
RS E RS (HE HBig TeamW 2 HE
BARAK)  URAGEEESEEERN
BigTeam H) R4 Lt {7l 1 5 8517 R B
B5 349,999 R RIERRE (ABR
FIfERIR) °

(0 WBEARABRER20I8FIA23RA
BHEMRER  EARRARKRNO G
BRARMEE RAR BRH R
FrEmmBFmERNBERT @ HER
NEIESBAARRMHERESET
£96,915,000/8 T EAME - WIRE AR
691,500,000 %k + LAEIRAF B
EERRERELIRARRE A
HIRRRAA RN ERRARRER
Lo BIBR 3 R BT TR S A A8 R B

P -
(d M2018F2A8RH + RABRKRMH

BERLREBRKMG0.30BTELT
168,450,000 &A% 15

FETRERIRMEME T HEREME
BN ZARFHAL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

REHEARE
AEEEREEA

%ﬁ¢%$'$ggﬂﬁ$ﬂ@%mﬂ
REHF R (3R 5 1

follows: R
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Within one year —FR 28,436 27,610
In the second to fifth year inclusive EF_ZFLF (BHEEEMSF) 33,180 36,720
61,616 64,330

The above operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for

restaurants, warehouses and office premises.

Leases and rentals are negotiated and fixed for term of two to five years. Certain
lease agreements entered into between the respective landlords and the Group
included renewal option at the discretion of the Group for further three years. The
operating lease rentals for certain restaurants are determined at the higher of a
fixed rental or a pre-determined percentage on revenue of respective restaurants
pursuant to the terms and conditions that are set out in the respective rental
agreements. As the future revenue of these restaurants could not be reliably
determined, the relevant contingent rent has not been included above and only the

minimum lease commitment have been included in the table above.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

MEEHENTEARERERE &
B &?))M%%Jﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ °
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

B R AR M &

For the year ended 3| December 2018

HBEWIBENA3IBIEFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. BHAERZ
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had BrézE ISR EEPTIREEE SN
the following transactions with its related parties during the year: FRN - AEEEHEBABAETUTR
v
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAET
Catering income from Ms. PY Wong fE|MEA L T AEERKA 188 273
Catering income from non-controlling fe—RKTE A R EERAR R AT
shareholders of a subsidiary ZHBA 340 33
Catering income from Gameone Group Limited REHEEERARIMMFERBA
(Note a) (P7Ea) — 15
Purchases of goods from Altaya MATEESm N/A 1,026
Purchases of goods from Cigarro [AICigarrofE B & i 21 27
Restaurant consultancy service income from fe—fEE A RSB BN R
an associate A 660 660
Restaurant consultancy service income from et HEREHR MBS EREEM
an AFS investee ARFUA — 255
Management service fee to companies with 50% R AL A L TR S0%E A Bl 4
owned by Ms. PY Wong ERRGE = 1,190
Consultancy service fee to a non-controlling BEENEEEE G ES AN
shareholder of subsidiaries k% & 44| 505
Rental expenses to companies with 50% owned by [ E&{fl B8 22 1 # A 50%8) A B2 1+
Ms. PY Wong (Note b) MeRx< (Mizb) 900 900
Purchase of property, plant and equipment from  [RIEME X THB 0% R FIEE
a company with 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong ME -~ BB && = 433
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Notes:

(@  Ms. PY Wong has significant influence in Gameone Group Limited.

(b)  Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum
payments under non-cancellable operating lease with a company with 50% owned by
Ms. PY Wong, which fall due as follows:

26.

BEEAIRZ (4)
Wi

T

MEZ T HEHEEERARBE
4o

B¢
A

@

i

>|_

I

¥
6) RESER AREREREREL

THEAS0%H) 1 BRT I KT AT HUH AR
EHENARRENFRENDEE

AT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT
Within one year —FR 900 600
In the second to fifth year inclusive BZERF (PEEEMF) 1,800 —
2,700 600

These operating lease commitment had been included in the amounts as shown in

note 25.

Details of the balances with related companies, a controlling shareholder, non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate at the end of the reporting

period are disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position and note 20.

Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation to key management personnel of the Group representing

individuals appointed as directors of the Company is set out in note 7.

146  JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED #RE&EEHERAR

ZEREREAECTI A 25
REHEA

RIEIR - EEBAR - —2FRER
R B ARSEERAR R K — &
AN ERFERBENGEMBRRE R
BifEE20 ©

TEEBAESNFS

ARBEREEABRRERERALE]
EEMAL  HHSHMMEET -



27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 March 2017, Big Team disposed of the entire equity interest in Concept
Wise Global Limited (“Concept Wise") (which holds 60% equity interest in More
Earn Limited (“More Eam™)) to an independent third party at a cash consideration

of approximately HK$513,000. The net assets of Concept Wise and its subsidiary

at the date of disposal were as follow:

27.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

HEHE AR

R2017F3A31 8 * Big TeamiZBE &K
{B#7513,00078 7T H & E 7 Concept Wise
Global Limited ([Concept Wise]) (35
More Eamn Limited ([More Earn|)E960%
BRE)NEHRET —EBBLE=F -
Concept Wise X KT A A1 H & B H#A
MEEFEWNT :

HK$'000
THER
Net assets disposed of: EHEEERE
Property, plant and equipment B 3,384
Deposits R 386
Inventories FE 109
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B85 MEMBYWRIE - e KEMNHKIE
prepayments 185
Bank balances and cash RITERRB 2 441
Trade and other payables and accrual charges B85 LHEMENRIERETER (724)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders ARERE e SN (2,590)
Provision B (169)
1,022
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMEAREE :
Consideration received BHRRE 513
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (1,022)
Non-controlling interests TS 409
Loss on disposal HEEE (100)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELERSRATE
Bank balances and cash disposal of HERITEBRER S (441)
Cash consideration received BRFRERE 513
72
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

27. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

On I'l September 2017, Big Team disposed of the entire equity interest in Fair
Dollar Ventures Limited (“Fair Dollar”) and assigned the relevant shareholder’s loan
between Big Team (as lender) and Fair Dollar (as borrower) to an independent
third party at an aggregate cash consideration of approximately HK$3,011,000. The

net assets of Fair Dollar at the date of disposal were as follow:

27.

HEWB LT (&)

R2017F9A 11 B ' Big TeamZHBR &
RABAI3,01 1,000 7T & E M Fair Dollar
Ventures Limited ([Fair Dollar])#) 2%
P4 K 88 Big Team (fEAE 7 ) EFair
Dollar({ERE 7 ) 2 MM ERR R &
FT—HRBIE=F ° Fair DollariA & H
HIWEEFENT ¢

HK$'000
TER
Net liabilities disposed of: EHEABEFE
AFS investment AfHEERE 2
Amount due from an AFS investee YA EREHRTIA 2,984
Shareholder's loan from Big Team R B Big TeamMI R E K (3011)
(25)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEH A R
Consideration received* B E* 3011
Assignment of shareholder’s B3 7% 5 Big Team AR BTN
loan from Big Team (3011)
Net liability disposed of HERBFEE 25
Gain on disposal HE Wz 25
& The consideration received of HK$3,011,000 also represented the cash inflow arising * EWARAE3,01 1,000 7T 715 Hi & Fair

on disposal of Fair Dollar.
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution,
no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$ 1,500

per employee per month.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represent contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid or payable to the above retirement benefits schemes by the
Group during the year ended 3| December 2018 is approximately HK$3,794,000
(2017: HK$3,501,000).

28.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

RIKERTE

wiRE T B DRRE G A E S G
FIRREIt R ESHEEERER © &
BeitElz EERBEXFEARS
EeNAEEZBEDREE © BiB%
BasE - BEXREEEHHIARRE
EErEVERRAEELL R 21 - A%
EEMRERTENE—BERELR
EMRK - B BERERIN - BIREMRE
SR EIT /2 UL R AT B AR AR SR
EREHER - HReR LRATEES
A 15008 7T °

Rz Ba kAN EERE RIS
BT BIMELRARAESIHR - 35
AL B AR ML RE R E
MEEEHEHER -

HZ20I18F 12831 HILFE - AEERE
A 2 FE ) b it 3R PRA8 Fl 5T &I /E H A 3R
#93,794,00078 78 (20174 : 3,501,00058
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBREMWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

29.

DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that

has material non-controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of

incorporation and ownership interests

principal place of and voting rights held by

29. FEREKMBLTMNFE

F2EMBLRMNHS

(Loss) profit allocated to

TRIVREBERIHERE RN A EE

Accumulated

Name of subsidiaries business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
TEAR AR 3L B FERESFANERA AEREFERERN
(oGRS REBERBE R RIRFERELA (E518) &R REFERER
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 3| December
RI2A31H BENABLEE RI2A31H
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TEx TER TET
|deal Profit Hong Kong = 25% (45) 175 = 831
HE e
Profit Holder Limited Hong Kong = 25% (508) (124) = (639)
(“Profit Holder™)
BEAERRR ([21%]) e
Gain Long Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong = 25% (85) [15 = (15)
(“Gain Long")
EARAR ([#E5]) B
More Earn* Hong Kong = — N/A (45) = =
More Earn* B8
Pure Love Restaurant Limited BVI/Hong Kong = 15% (353) (128) = (399)
(“Pure Love")
Pure Love Restaurant Limited KBELES/
(TPure Love]) BB
(991) @) = (222)
& More Eamn ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group upon the disposal of Concept & AOHTFE27 BT EE © More Eam20174F

Wise (which holds 60% equity interest in More Earn) on 31 March 2017, as disclosed

in note 27.

Summarised financial information for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

3831 B % Concept Wise(#5 More

Earn ) 60% A% 1 ) 18 55 A 7 & B RO B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

29. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont d) 29. 2EMBRARNFEEE)

Ideal Profit

HE

As at 3|1 December

RI2H31R

2017

HK$'000

FET

Non-current assets FREEE 1,521
Current assets MENEE 7932
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (85)
Current liabilities mEEE (5.872)
3,496

Equity attributable to owners of the Company PN RS PNy 2,665
Non-controlling interests of Ideal Profit HE RIS 831
3,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

29. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont d) 29. F2EMBRRNFEEE)
Ideal Profit (Cont d) AR (&)
Ten months ended Year ended
31 October 31 December
BZ10A31H BZ12A31H
IE+1EA LEFE
2018* 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
57 FAT
Revenue A 12,805 17,306
Expenses % (12,983) (16,604)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) /FR(BR)aMkEE(FX)
income for the period/year W 4E%E (178) 702
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) AT ATEEE, R (B8) &
income for the period/year attributable to: REmE (FX )Wl -
— owners of the Company *ZIK’“ﬂTZﬁﬁ/\ (133) 527
— non-controlling interests of Ideal Profit AE R AR e (45) 175
(178) 702
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholder of IR FHERERBRRORE
Ideal Profit 250 200
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEHRERANFE 1,675 1,544
Net cash outflow from investing activities REBDH ML FE (1,032) (1,006)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BREEHRSTERAFE (125) (410)
Net cash inflow ReRAFE 518 128
& The amounts represented the results and cash flow movements of Ideal Profit for * RRAEER2018F 10A31 B

FERRL AR R T 2 2 25% 42 - 7%
SHEEBEER20I8F I BIBE20I8
FI0A3 BHENEERASRES
§7j °

the period | January 2018 to 31 October 2018, due to the acquisition of all of the
remaining 25% equity interests from a non-controlling shareholder on 3| October
2018 by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 29. 2EMBRARNFEEE)
Profit Holder B

As at 3| December
RI12A31H
2017
HK$'000
TET
Non-current assets FREEE 7,925
Current assets MENEE 10,202
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (527)
Current liabilities mEaE (20,092)
(2492)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRRIER AEILER (1,853)
Non-controlling interests of Profit Holder BRI R S (639)
(2,492)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

29. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont d) 29. F2EMBRRNFEEE)
Profit Holder (Cont'd) B (E)
Ten months ended Year ended
31 October 31 December
BZI10A31B  #EZE12A318
IE+{EA LFE
2018* 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Revenue WA 21,076 29,985
Expenses 53 (23,108) (30,483)
Loss and total comprehensive B/ FNEEREERZEHE
expense for the period/year (2,032) (498)
Loss and total comprehensive WTRATEESFRERREE
expense for the period/year attributable to: A2 4878
— owners of the Company —RRAFEAA (1,524) (374)
— non-controlling interests of Profit Holder — BER IR s (508) (124)
(2,032) (498)
Net cash inflow from operating activities RETBRSMAFHE 694 1,224
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEEHR LML FE (2,058) (466)
Net cash inflow from financing activities METHHRSRAFE 456 126
Net cash (outflow) inflow B ORH)RARE (908) 884

& The amounts represented the results and cash flow movements of Profit Holder for
the period | January 2018 to 31 October 2018, due to the acquisition of all of the
remaining 25% equity interests from a non-controlling shareholder on 3| October
2018 by the Group.
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 29. F2EMBRRNFEEE)
Gain Long Bin
As at 3| December
RI12A31H
2017
HK$'000
T
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,729
Current assets MEBEE 2,384
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (159)
Current liabilities TEaE (4,240)
(286)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRAFEE AEGHER @71)
Non-controlling interests of Gain Long ElnH IR E R (15)
(286)
Ten months ended Year ended
31 October 31 December
BZI0A3IA  #HZEI12A31R
IE+1E A R
2018* 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Revenue WA 9,963 12913
Expenses X% (10,304) (12,448)
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) /50 (B8R k2HE ()
income for the period/year LN (341) 465
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) AR ATRE(EER,F/ ()& H
income for the period/year attributable to: RE2E (Fx) WAL :
— owners of the Company —RRAFEAA (256) 350
— non-controlling interests of Gain Long —SinmIFE R R (85) I5
(341) 465
Net cash inflow from operating activities RETHREMAFHE 812 1,329
Net cash outflow from investing activities REGBHR ML FHE (946) 977)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities B4 & /FBIRERA O )F58 467 (468)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BanAGRL)#8 333 (116)
& The amounts represented the results and cash flow movements of Gain Long for HRAEER2018F 10731 BUE

the period | January 2018 to 31 October 2018, due to the acquisition of all of the
remaining 25% equity interests from a non-controlling shareholder on 3| October

2018 by the Group.

FEIEIRAR R R RR N 2 2P 25%ARHE © 3%
S RBEEBRN2018F I BIBE2018
FI0A3 BHEMEERA S RES

& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

29. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont d) 29. F2EMBRRNFEEE)

More Earn

More Earn

Three months
ended 3| March

B=3A31R
LE={EHA
2017*
HK$'000
FET
Revenue WA 2,372
Expenses 53 (2,487)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the period HAEEREEMA AR (115)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for UTATEEHABEREE
the period attributable to: < 4878 -
— owners of the Company —ARAREBA (70)
— non-controlling interests of More Eamn —More Eamn BV FE1E R i 25 (45)
(115)
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEBHRERAFE 4510
Net cash inflow from investing activities RERHREMAFE 72
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEHRE AL FE (4,642)
Net cash outflow REMNFRE (60)
& The amounts represented the results and cash flow movements of More Eamn for the * RR2017F3A3I BHERBA A

period from | January 2017 to 31 March 2017, due to disposal of subsidiaries on 31

March 2017 as disclosed in note 27.
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 29. 2EMBRARNFEEE)

Pure Love

Pure Love

As at 3|1 December

R12A31R

2017

HK$'000

FHET

Non-current assets FERBEE 5473
Current assets RBEE 1512
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (224)
Current liabilities mEEE (9.423)
(2,662)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PN RS PNy (2,263)
Non-controlling interests of Pure Love Pure Love MV FEFE M HE 21 (399)
(2,662)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

29. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 29.

Pure Love (Cont'd)

FREMBRRANFE(E)

Pure Love(%&)

Period from
| January 2018 to Year ended
|4 September 31 December
2018* 2017
20185
IRIBRE BE0I17F
201859 A 14H 12A318
B 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr T
Revenue WA 6,311 15,662
Expenses X (8,665) (16,519)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for B/ FABEREERZEHE
the period/year (2,354) (857)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the WRATEES FREEREE
period/year attributable to: A #E%E -
— owners of the Company . YNCIE 7N (2,001) (729)
— non-controlling interests of Pure Love —Pure Love R 3EZ AR i 21 (353) (128)
(2,354) (857)
Net cash outflow from operating activities e EER LML FE (752) (354)
Net cash outflow from investing activities RETHRSRLFE 913) (1,165)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BERERERAFE 1,771 1,563
Net cash inflow RERNFE 106 44
& The amounts represented the results and cash flow movements of Pure Love for BRR20184E9 A |14 B Y& FEIE AR AR

the period from | January 2018 to 4 September 2018, due to the acquisition of

all of the remaining 15% equity interests from a non-controlling shareholder on 14

September 2018,

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of these non-wholly owned

subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to
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29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018

HBEWIBENA3IBIEFE

DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 29. F2EMBRRNFEEE)
Change in ownership in non-wholly owned subsidiaries F2EMBAREERED
Increase
% of equity (Decrease) (decrease)
interest increase in in attributable
acquired non-controlling to owners
Name of subsidiary by the Group interests  of the Company
FEEBARE FERER  AREEEA
MELREME Bk (R0 G m )
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FiHn
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2018F 12831 HLELFE
|deal Profit (Note ) B (PaE1) 25% (536) 536
Profit Holder (Note 1) B () 25% 1,147 (1,147)
Gain Long (Note 1) st (FIE1) 25% 100 (100)
Pure Love (Note 2) Pure Love (PfdE2) 15% 752 (752)
Note I: The Group acquired 25% equity interests in these subsidiaries from Mr. Jason BzFl: REBER2018F 10831 B
Atherton, an independent third party to the Group, at a cash consideration of 2,000,000 TTHREREGARER
HK$2,000,000 on 31 October 2018, BB 5 = J Jason Atherton AU
L S HB A Al 25% R o
Note 2: The Group acquired 5% equity interest in this subsidiary from Mr. Nathan Green, BiEr: AREER201849 A 14 B EA 50T
an independent third party to the Group, at a cash consideration of HK$150 on 4 HESREAREENBIE=F
September 2018. Nathan Green4t 4 Ui 32 Mt B 2 7]
) | S%HE
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. EFXEBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance and equity balance.
Debt balance mainly consists of bank borrowings (details as set out in note
22). Equity balance consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on an on-going
annual basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well

as the issue of new debt or repayment of debts.

AEBRENEE 5 ERERAEE N M
AEROAFHELE  AREBELE
BREDRES  BESRRTERKA
[ o A EHBBRIEEEFAR -

AEBRNEANRBERETEH R ED
o BRERTIBERRBRITENR (F
TEHNITE22) - BAERBEANAE
BNl (BRE B TR NERE)

AEBERERESFRIERNER
R ERSREBEREROKAN R
BRER - REASEEEENRZE - &~
SEREBXIRE - BITHRRE
THEREREBATEERRERE
1o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

@)

31.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. €@THE
Categories of financial instruments (@) =SEMIANER
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx FHAT
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERKEYIE(BERE K
cash equivalents) ReEED) N/A 29,738
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKAGTENEREE 53,565 N/A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKAGENSRARE 26,810 39,426
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)) HEREEBNRBEE

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables
and deposits, amounts due from related companies, a controlling
shareholder, non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and accrued charges, amounts due to related companies, a controlling
shareholder and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies

on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

()

Market risk
Interest rate nisk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to floating-rate bank borrowings, and fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits and non-interest bearing amounts
due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder and non-

controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, amount due from an associate.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group closely monitors its exposure to
future cash flow risk as a result of change on market interest rate and
will consider hedging changes in market interest rates should the need

arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are

detailed in the liquidity risk section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances and floating-rate
bank borrowings as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank balances and bank borrowings is

minimal.

r e R R MR

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

3. &MIA#E)
b)) SHEREEARNWRECK(E)

()

7
FIE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont d)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the maximum exposure to credit risk of
the Group which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades with a large number of individual customers and
trading terms are mainly on cash and credit card settlement. In view
of the Group's operation, the Group does not have significant credit
risk exposure to any single individual customer. Since | January
2018, the Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is assessed on an individual
debtor basis. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss pattems for different customers, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customers as at | January 2018. At 3|
December 2018, the Group assessed the lifetime ECL of the trade
receivables and |2m ECL of the other receivables and considered that

the expected credit loss allowance for these receivables is immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNME

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)
Amounts due from related parties

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due
from related companies, a controlling shareholder, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and an associate. The management of
the Group considers the counterparties have continuous repayment
history. Since | January 2018, the Group measures loss allowances for
amounts due from related parties at an amount equal to 12m ECL,
which is assessed on an individual debtor basis. As at 3| December
2018, the management of the Group assessed that the expected
credit loss allowance for these receivables is immaterial under |2m
ECL method.

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

3. &MIA#E)
b)) SHEREEARNWRECK(E)

(i)

EEmBRBETEG (%)
FEW T AR

7N E5 B ¥ 6 7 e W R
DA —BERBRR -
FEUNGIE S T SE:
NERBENENEEER
Bk AEEERERE
HFEFAARBNENRT
B - B20I18F I AIA%E -
AEEURBEEABBA
EWTENERI2EA
HHEEERNEEFE
JIE U5 B Bt 5 SRTE Y B 1R
1% o R20185F12A318 -
AEBEEENTI2EA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE T ERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

Bank balances and pledge bank deposits

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with bank balances and pledged bank deposits since they are
substantially deposited at medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed
banks. Management does not expect that there will be any significant
losses from non-performance by these counterparties. The Group has
concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and

bank balances are placed with three banks in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deem adequate by
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the

effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based

on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(i)

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

3. EWMIAE)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont d) b)) SHEREEENREEE)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (i) FHEZEE (E)
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the TREFEMNERRERE
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount ME - WAMERERTH
is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period. FIEFE - RBREET
BREHARN KRS -
Weighted
average Between Total Total
effective ~ Repayable Less than 3 months to Between undiscounted carrying
interest rate  on demand 3 months I'year |to5years  cashflows amount
T RER DR =f8A -£ RERRE
BRAI= HE =f8A E-F ELf  REAE RELH
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THAR THR FER THAR TR
As at 31 December 2018 R20I8%F12A31A
Non-derivative financial FTESREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTE
and accrued charges RIEHER N/A 1717 16,554 = = 18271 18271
Amounts due to related FERT B A RI50R
companies N/A = 9% — — 94 94
Bank borrowings - floating rate  $R{TfE 3 — 128 3.52% — 1,206 3,560 4,004 8,770 8,445
1,717 17,854 3,560 4,004 27,135 26,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

31.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 3. 2WMIAE)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont d) b)) SHEREEENREEE)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (i) FHEHELEE(E)
Weighted
average Between Total Total
effective  Repayable Lessthan 3 months to Between undiscounted carrying
interest rate on demand 3 months I'year lto5years  cashflows amount
IEF BES 22N =1&A —F XE5HRe
il b =faA E—F ERF  RERE RELE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT  THET  TEE  TBR  TER  THR
As at 3| December 2017 R20175 12431 B
Non-derivative financial FTESRBR
liabilities
Trade and other payables 85 REMEMNTE
and accrued charges REGER N/A 2758 18375 — — 21,133 21,133
Amounts due to related R ARNIE
companies N/A 602 79 = = 681 681
Bank borrowings - floating rate  $R{TEH— /%8, 283 — 1443 4277 12,777 18497 17612
3360 19,897 4277 12,777 40311 39426

The amounts included above for variable interest rate non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to changes if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end

of the reporting period.

(c)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are

measured at amortised cost

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of the financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost using discounted cash
flows analysis. The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost

in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position

32.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

EARUBESR
MR R B *R

As at 31 December

RI2A31H
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FEE A RRRE 41,204 —
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and others FAR B R EH AL 322 5203
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUFfT B X RIFRIR 5,741 =
Bank balances and cash RiITEARI 2 27,181 83
33,244 5,286
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued charges HihENFIERESER 816 5214
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETH B 2 RIFKIA 23,343 —
Amounts due to related companies J& 1~ RBSE X A1 SRR = 24,651
24,159 29,865
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEEFE(BEEHE) 9,085 (24,579)
Net assets (liabilities) EEFE(BEFH) 50,289 (24,579)
Capital and reserves EX K%
Share capital (note 24) R (BfE24) 8,600 —
Reserves G 41,689 (24,579)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company FARBEEARLES 50,289 (24,579)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

32.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

32. ADTMBER ()
ARRREEED

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

BoaE  RIAERE #ast

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TER TER TER

At | January 2017 R2017F 1 A1H — (14,416) (14,416)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEREEMEE

for the year — (10,163) (10,163)

At 31 December 2017 2017412431 H — (24,579) (24,579)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREERZHEMXERE

for the year = (7,333) (7,333)

Arising from group reorganisation SEEHEE 41,204 — 41,204

Capitalisation issue (note) BT (MiaE) (6,915) — (6,915)

Issue of new shares upon share offer (note) R BERBITHR () 48,850 — 48,850

Transaction costs attributable to issue BATHIRIEIGE
of new shares R A (9,538) — (9,538)
At 3| December 2018 R2018F 128318 73,601 (31,912) 41,689

Note: Details are set out in the notes to the consolidated statement of change in equity and

note 24.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNME

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 33, MEITBHMELEEMNYHE

ACTIVITIES

TEHHIA R E R E B A
BUHE  DERLRIRLED - B
BEBFELAEEAELROREY
REARLRBHEAREEAT SR

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified

in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities. EXRTHOBRREEMERERE
& o
Non-trade Amounts
nature Amount  due to non-
amounts due dueto  controlling Accrued
torelated a controlling shareholders Bank Dividend  share issue
companies  shareholder of subsidiaries  borrowings payable costs Total
B
NARE  EN-F  EOWE
(k% ERRR DQAFER fEst R
HE) FE  RRRE  BARER EGRE ROAX @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign TR TiER TER TiEgn Tign Fign
At | January 2017 R0I7% A1 53 3 259 14125 — - 16771
Financing cash flows RERENE 434 ) — 3007 (200) — 3038
Dividend declared (note 12) BRARE (ME12) — — — — 200 - 200
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 27) HERBAF — — (2590) — — = (2590)
(B¥&E27)
Finance costs RERA = = = 480 — — 480
At 31 December 2017 R20I7F 124318 487 = = 17612 = = 18,099
Financing cash flows HERERE (397) = = (9,657) (250) (9,538) (19,842)
Dividend declared (note 12) ERRE (F&£12) — - — — 250 — 250
Finance costs MERK — = = 490 = = 490
Transaction costs attributable to BITAREAN - — — — = 9,538 9,538
issue of new shares RERE
At 31 December 2018 20185124318 90 = = 8,445 = = 8,535
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. IEMEATNERE
Details of the principal subsidiaries comprising the Group at the end of the RBEBR - AEBETZEMBRF
reporting period are set out below: BT
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
ERTR  AKERI2A3IA
WEARER LB 3L 4 BN BRRA PR RA LAl TEEK
2018 2017
Big Team BVI Hong Kong US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Big Team B reeids e 50,000 7T REAZR
Brightsome Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
IEREBRAR KEEARE EB 1% £Ege
Capital Creative Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
ERERAA BB BB 100787 ERgE
Duddell's Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Club membership

services for one of

the Group's restaurants
Duddells Hong Kong Limited B B 100/ 7T RASEHER—HEE

REEERERRE

Gain Long Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 75%  Restaurant operation
(note 29)

&in B B 100087 (H&E29) 2Rge

Ideal Profit Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$50,000 100% 75%  Restaurant operation
(note 29)

HE BB B 5000087 (Kit&E29) RRLE

Kingswide Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

EHBRAF BB Big 100787T ERgE

Luck Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation

Luck Wealthy Limited & BE 100787T 2R

Oman International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3 100% 100%  Trademark holder

Investment Limited

ZEERREBRAR BA BA 3BT AIERAA

Profit Holder Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ 1,000 100% 75%  Restaurant operation
(note 29)

RafE B B 100087 (Kf&E29) ERGE

Rising Mark Development Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

BRERBRAR REEARS EB 10,00057T BB

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| December 2018

HBEWIBENA3IBIEFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 34. XEMBARMNFE(E)
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
Place of fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
ERTR  AKRERI2A31A
WEARERE R AL 3L 4 B BRI BRRA PR RA LAl TEEH
2018 2017
Springlike Limited BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Investment holding
Springlike Limited BREZES B E REER
Top Glorification Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Top Glorification Limited B reeids 0 100%7T BRRE
Victory Rich Global Group Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
AR EBER A RBRAHE B 100007 BERR
Dazzle Long Limited BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Investment holding
Dazzle Long Limited REELZES BH E REER
Maxmount Global Limited BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Provision of consutancy
services in connection
with the restaurant
operations
BRRIRERAR REEARS BB B RERGERHERN
R
Season Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Investment holding
Season Luck Limited EBRAES 0 E REER
Pure Love BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 85%  Restaurant operation
(note 29)
Pure Love EREZEE e 0% (BH&E29) EERE
Ultra Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$ I 100% 100% To carry out
restaurant operation
HEERAA BE BE I787T ft=gEge
Fine Wisdom Holdings Limited BVI Hong Kong US$I 100% 100%  Investment holding
Fine Wisdom Holdings Limited RS BB E REZR
Vantage Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong USS$| 100% 100%  Investment holding
Vantage Luck Limited EEEZEE BE Ev REER
King Access Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$I 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
BEBRAR BE BE 1787 £REge
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BEW0I8F A3 ALFE

34.

35.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

The above table lists the entities now comprising the Group which, in the opinion
of the Directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Big Team is directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company. All subsidiaries now comprising the Group are limited liability
companies and have adopted 3| December as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the share option
scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the shareholders
passed on 23 January 2018. The terms of the share option scheme are in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The share option scheme became
effective on 8 February 2018, and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for |0 years from that date.

No share option has been granted by the Company since the adoption of the
share option scheme.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
shareholders. The Board of Directors of the Company may offer to grant an option
to any Qualifying Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who
is an officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates; (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates; (3)
any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group
or any affiliates; (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier
of goods or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof
(collectively the “Eligible Person”); or (ii) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible
Person or his immediate family members or any company controlled by an Eligible
Person or his immediate family members.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF

34.

35.

FEMB LTINS (Z)
EREFAREERESETEERE - AQA]
EERE FHERBHAEENEER
EEBKEEYE - ARREERA
REEMMBARNFEEEREHF
BRERE

Big TeamM AR RIEEZIFE » FTEEAD
MBAR AR REERE - A%E
BRETHENBRARYAERAR -
WA 12 A3 BAEMBRELR -

RER - BHEME QPR T EAERE
T

B8

RATUEREE R ET S

T AEEREMN20I8F | A23HRA
EERERE KRN ERERT 2138
I EZ KB E - BIRERTEIR ISR
TIABE R FTGEME S FTARBIE —+=
B RIRE - B EIN20185F
2A8HAER » MBRIERTTEUEISET
BRETEEZERI0FN—EBR °

AR B RN FBCRE T B A SR A SR AR
Rl -

BRE B B R RS RBEHAL
AEBERBNNRERERAL B
AERARA (ERR T O RHREINE
B BB RRERE AR EREBIR
B ARB R E AR RN LR
B - ARREFEGAREMEER
X ANB R LR o

[BEREABRAIBE () ()EAEEE
IR B A BB A RN EMES
(ERBEBIFBEL) RAREEE
B2 VNGBt IEYNSIESTYNET:D
EAAT  QERBTAEEEMRMKER
ARSI ABBARLENEAAL ()
AEBS BB R RNTIMEAA
RE K%K BR - TPREASRE @)
EMEBEIERH BR/ MR 5&
7 AAREESEABEA R REER
SREAHEFIREEMEES (RBA
[BERAL] : (A ERALRE
ERVBXanmEMERREEEBA
THREERFBEGNEMRRF o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the share option
scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this
will result in the limit being exercised. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the share option scheme
and any other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the
shares in issued following the completion of the capitalisation issue and the share
offer, i.e. 86,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the share option scheme such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to the date
of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to

time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme at any time during a period as determined by the board of Directors of
the Company and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the share option scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0
upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer (or such period
as the board of Directors of the Company may specify in writing). The exercise
price of the options is determined by the board of Directors of the Company in
its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the
closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the offer date; (b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (c) the nominal value of a share. The share option scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8 February 2018, after which no

further options will be granted or offered.

35.

e MR RH R

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

BRAESHEl Contd)
RERERERT & R MM EIE S &
RIARTTEE 2 BITEINB R R T(E
REA] TRIT 2RO BEREE - TR
TEEB BTN Z230% - NDAITEIR
BARBREAGEREEAEEHETY
PREE < B ARiE - AR AR &8 kA
RAMERIEME EIH TR BB RER
RERATEM AL BITHIRMEE LRA
ETEHRBERENMBITRRNEE
SERKIEE BT #10% + BN86,000,000
BRARAD

i EERE B2 BERTEERE
BRI B AL EA 2@ ABRACE
RRSGERBRE  MEMEETRE
TRITOBRN RBBAR AR NG %
TIRAH 1% - BITNGRZ2EERTE
(AR PR o

ERENAARNESSETHHME (B
TERBERE AR I0F)ERR
IREEIRIERT G A] T1T(E - WEME
BRENYT FIIEAERENREH
- BRETEI2REENEN AR
8B (IARRIEE S EEEHRN
HEA - REAREmRAAR L
OB - BREITEERANFRESS
BUTBET - BETEER T =&+
HEEE  (QRENABZETAR
EXRAENROUTE : O)RBEEEL
A AEEERBEAREBRA
RO FRTE : K(OBROHEE -
BRETEIA2018F2 A8 BT I0F
NERRER  HETEBEREKED
B RERE -
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHBHE
The following tables summaries the consolidated financial statements of the Group in TEREIIRATEFREBNGEMTTRE -
respective year as indicated:
For the year ended 31 December
HENA3IBLLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAT TR TR
Revenue A 170,487 206,476 232,375 236,371 230,256
Profit (loss) before taxation BRiAnE R (B18) 5492 (2,760) (7531) (3217) (15,673)
Income tax expense FEHAX (1,194) (1832) (2012) (1,357) (753)
Profit (loss) for the year ERm (ER) 4298 (4592) (9.543) (4574) (16,426)
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Htn2m (Fs)HA
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HEMRENNHE
to profit or loss: BRMER -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEBIINEBEEN
of foreign operation BB X = — (253) (129) = =
Reclassification of translation reserve to profit HEBINEBE KR :%—
or loss upon disposal of foreign operation REETHIEEES — — 382 = =
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMEE (FZ)WA
for the year = (253) 253 = =
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREERA (Fx) B
for the year 4298 (4,845) (9290) (4574) (16,426)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: T & IBREIGE A&
(B8 :
— Owners of the Company R YNGI Z-UN 2747 (7,033) (8,245) (4,567) (15,435)
— Non-controlling interests — RIS 1551 2441 (1298) @) (991)
4298 (4592) (9.543) (4574) (16,426)
Total comprehensive income (expense) NI EEREFAZE
for the year attributable to: WA (R )48
— Owners of the Company R YNGIZ Z-UN 2747 (7,240) (7.992) (4,567) (15,435)
— Non-controlling interests — RIS 1551 2,395 (1298) ) (991)
4298 (4,845) (9,290) (4574) (16,426)
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Note:

Pursuant to the group reorganisation as more fully explained in the section headed “Corporate
Reorganisation” in Appendix V to the Prospectus (the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company
became the holding company of the companies now comprising the Group on 23 January 2018. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting from the Group Reorganisation have
been under the common control of Ms. Wong Pui Yain throughout the years ended 31 December
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 or since their respective dates of incorporation, where there
is a shorter period and is regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the principles of merger accounting in accordance with
Accounting Guideline 5 "Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as if the Company had always been the holding

company of the Group.

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015,
2016, 2017 and 2018, which are prepared as if the current group structure had been in existence
throughout the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 or since the date of

incorporation of respective group companies where there is a shorter period.

AEMBHME

B -

BRESEEA(SEEAR] iR BRERZNE
AlESEI—)  ADFIR20I8F 1 A23HK
BERANAEANSRRZERAR - REEE
EMEENAEE (BERARAIRENBAR)RE
Z20144 20154 ~ 20164  2017F 2018512
A3 BIEFES A ZEARS A TR BELR
(UABGHEAE) —EXHEMA LT ERES
EWEARECEER - Alt - KAMBHRERER
BEEBSeMASBMN g5l Eo5% [ HRE
HlE B2 A MEEIRATRAA S ETEARRE
g BARR—ERREEHNZERAF o

B EER T EEEAEEEZ 20145 - 2015
20165 2017 K018 12831 BILFERW
mAEBRIEMEENER  MORRENEEEE
REZ2014% « 20155 ~ 20165 + 2017 %2018
FNA3NAILFERESEBRRFMA B R
(ABEHRAE)EFE -
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LFEMBEHRE

As at 31 December

R12A318
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKP000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT THERT
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets BEMAE 76,508 90,726 92,170 85,715 94,772
Total liabilities BERAH (69444)  (37442)  (48176)  (46904)  (33,640)
Net assets BEFE 7,064 53,284 43994 3881 | 61,132
Equity attributable to: LA NS IEFE(RERS
— Owners of the Company . YNCIE 2PN 8,101 53343 45425 39,033 61,132
— Non-controlling interests — IR (1,037) (59) (1431) (222) —
7,064 53,284 43994 3881 | 61,132
Note: BizE

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 23 January 2018. The Group comprising the Company
and its subsidiaries resulting from the Group Reorganisation have been under the common control
of Ms. Wong Pui Yain throughout the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018
or since their respective dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter period and is regarded as a
continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
principles of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as if the Company had always been the holding company of the Group.

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of financial position of
the Group as at 3| December 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, which present the assets and liabilities of
the companies now comprising the Group as at the respective dates as if the current group structure

had been in existence at those dates.

JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R&EBERAF
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